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Phumlani Mntambo

LGSETA: Chairperson of the Board

FOREWORD BY THE   

CHAIRPERSON 

I
t is my honour and privilege to present the 2021-2022 

Annual Report for the Local Government Sector 

Education and Training Authority (LGSETA) in line with 

the requirements of the Public Finance Management 

Act (PFMA) section 55(1). The Board appreciates 

the efforts of management and staff in ensuring that 

the internal controls were effectively implemented and 

considers itself privileged to have been appointed to the 

stewardship of this true leader of skills development in 

the LGSETA. The Board members, without exception, 

appreciate the depth of dedication required of them 

together with the management collective and the 

employees. We also acknowledge the collaboration with 

our stakeholders and service providers that drives the 

continued improvement of LGSETA.

The LGSETA is one of the major contributors to 

employment in the country and, looking forward, the 

Board remains conscious of its responsibilities of fulfilling 

its mandate, and ensuring that the SETA contributes 

towards the achievement of transformation imperatives 

as stipulated in the National Development Plan (NDP) 

and the National Skills Development Plan(NSDP) 2030. 

FINAL AUDIT OUTCOME BY THE OFFICE OF 

THE AUDITOR-GENERAL

The Accounting Authority is satisfied with LGSETA’s 

Annual Financial Statements that were audited by the 

Auditor-General of South Africa and concurred with 

unqualified audit opinion outcome. The Annual Financial 

Statements were prepared in accordance with Generally 

Recognised Accounting Practice  (GRAP) issued by 

Accounting Standard Board, SETA’s guiding legal 

prescripts, the Skills Development Act ( Act No 97 of 

1998) and the Skills Development Levy Act 9 of 1999), 

as amended, PFMA and Treasury Regulations.

MANDATE AND PERFORMANCE OF THE 

BOARD

The key mandate of the Board is to provide strategic 

leadership and oversight on financial management, 

performance management, governance, internal 

controls and compliance with Laws and Regulations. In 

the remaining term of the Board , the Board will continue 

to focus on building, maintaining, and strengthening 

relations with all stakeholders including Municipalities, 

Labour Representative, The House of Traditional 

Leadership, and the entire staff of LGSETA. 

GOVERNANCE MATTERS

The Board continues to apply the knowledge and 

expertise, collectively with management, to address 

transversal and sector-specific education and training 

needs. This will be done through the implementation 

of internships, learnerships and skills development 

programmes addressing  occupational shortages (scarce) 

and skills gap (critical skills), among others.

STRATEGY AND OPERATIONAL 

PERFORMANCE

During 2021-2022, the Board enhanced its track record 

of sound corporate governance by providing strategic 

leadership to the organisation as required by the Public 

Finance Management Act (PFMA) 1999, other relevant 

legislation and codes of good practice. The performance 

of the SETA has declined from 66% in 2020-2021 to 62% 

in 2021-2022, the SETA has already developed various 

strategies to improve performance in future.
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CHALLENGES AND OPPORTUNITIES

The skills development agenda creates both opportunities 

and challenges which is an ongoing process. The history 

of this country dictates that the skills development 

mandate cannot be abandoned. The unemployment rate 

is increasing exponentially affecting graduates and their 

inability to enter the economic market at an equitable rate. 

The economy is shrinking, and rating agencies continue 

to keep a hawk’s eye on South Africa. These challenges 

require the LGSETA’s intervention to devise strategies to 

address skills development and support the mandate of 

the local government, particularly municipalities.

The other critical challenges that impacted the SETA 

was the increase of unauthorised, irregular, fruitless 

and wasteful expenditures in the municipalities and 

poor performance in the 2020-2021 audit outcomes 

which affects skills development priorities. The SETA 

in collaboration with CoGTA, SALGA and National 

Treasury will need to devise a strategy that will assist the 

municipalities to train all officials on technical issues in 

particular Finance and Technical Departments.

STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIPS

In order for the growth of the country economically, 

and to address unemployment, poverty, inequality 

and to achieve the National Skills Development Plan 

(NSDP) 2030 vision, of an educated, skilled and capable 

workforce for South Africa , strategic partnership with 

other SETA’s and stakeholders are critical for skills 

development.

APPRECIATION

LGSETA has made invaluable contribution in the sector 

and approved strategic partnership model, councillor 

development strategy and traditional leadership strategy 

with the aim of developing the local government sector. 

In October 2021, the Board resolved to precautionary 

suspend four Executive Management which left the 

entity with a vacuum in the management. However, the 

CEO and his team managed to steer the organisation 

and achieve an unqualified audit opinion. 

To my Board members, thank you for your commitment 

and the tireless work in all Board and sub-committee 

sittings and making the year under review a memorable 

year with your contributions, constructive critique and 

recommendations.

CONCLUSION

On behalf of the Board, I wish to thank the Chief 

Executive Officer, Executive Management and the 

entire staff for their support to the strategic leadership. 

We thank the Board for their strategic guidance and 

leadership. The outstanding support by the Department 

of Higher Education and Training is highly appreciated.  

Appreciation to all other stakeholders for the work 

performed to ensure that the LGSETA achieved its 

strategic objectives.

The LGSETA Board looks forward to strengthening 

partnerships and working with all stakeholders within the 

local government sector.

Phumlani Mntambo 

LGSETA: Chairperson 

The skills development agenda creates both 

opportunities and challenges which is an ongoing 

process. The history of this country dictates that the 

skills development mandate cannot be abandoned. The 

unemployment rate is increasing exponentially affecting 

graduates and their inability to enter the economic 

market at an equitable rate. 



6 LGSETA |  ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22

I
t is my honour and privilege to present the overview 

of Local Government Sector Education and Training 

Authority (LGSETA) activities for the fiscal year 

2021-2022. The financial year under review was my 

first full fiscal year with the organisation and also an 

opportunity to implement new strategies of how grants 

should be disbursed. The LGSETA Board of Directors 

approved the District Development Model, Bursary 

strategy and smart city concept to drive operational 

excellence.

The period under review was the second year of 

implementation of the National Skills Development Plan 

2030 priorities and LGSETA 5 -year strategic priorities. 

The elections of the fifth democratic local government 

administration in November 2021 also saw the LGSETA 

taking center stage with adoption and implementation 

of the Councilor Development strategy which seeks to 

ensure that the local government sector is served with 

ethical leadership that is also underpinned by strong 

financial management. The period under review also saw a 

quest by management and the Board in a path to improve 

the health of the organisation by reviewing more than 

40 policies that had been long recurring findings by the 

Auditor General South Africa; developing more than five 

strategies and commissioning a project on reconstruction 

of commitments to ensure that the misstatements and 

classifications of commitments are dealt with to improve 

the project management methodology in LGSETA. The 

LGSETA finances has also improved with the increase in 

the forecasted budget for the financial year under review 

attributable to a growing sector and improvement in the 

collection of skills development levies.

The COVID-19 also amplified the appreciation of 

fourth industrial revolution with use of technology for 

theoretical component of our learning delivery and also 

implementing working remotely from the office. We 

have also partnered with private providers, Universities 

and Public colleges to introduce remote learning.

The sixth administration also introduced the Economic 

Reconstruction and Recovery Plan (ERRP) which was 

approved by the cabinet to stimulate equitable and 

inclusive growth. The COVID-19 found a weak economy 

that was characterized by series of downgrades that 

impacted on low level of investment and growth. 

LGSETA responded to the following priorities of the 

plan: Infrastructure; energy security; green economy and 

public employment programmes through internships 

and learnerships.

PERFORMANCE AGAINST PREDETERMINED 

OBJECTIVES

LGSETA reports on its performance against 

predetermined objectives on four programmes namely: 

Administration, Skills Planning, Learning Programmes 

and Quality Assurance. The audit of predetermined 

objectives is performed to determine whether the 

performance information is useful and reliable and in 

accordance with the criteria as developed from the 

performance management and reporting framework. 

As the LGSETA management we have to address the 

persistent root causes and improve on our controls. We 

shall ensure that we plan smarter and manage the impact 

of our treatment action plans. We are urgently pursuing 

the root causes with the monitoring of treatment action 

plans and the unqualified audit opinion is welcomed. 

Ineeleng Molete

LGSETA: Chief Executive Officer

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

OFFICER’S OVERVIEW  
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The elections of the fifth democratic local 

government administration in November 2021 also 

saw the LGSETA taking centre stage around adoption and 

implementation of the Councillor Development Strategy 

which seeks to ensure that the local government sector is 

served with ethical leadership. 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

In the year under review, we have noted a number of 

areas that require interventions, like the organisational 

business processes, internal controls and compliance 

monitoring.  

SPENDING TREND

For the year under review, the levy income amounted to 

R867 194 million, which is made up of, discretionary grants 

of R526 775 million (49.5%), mandatory grant of R212 317 

million (20%) and the administration grant of R111 669 

million (10.5%). The levy income 2021-22 financial year 

increased by 62% as compared to prior year.

The overall expenditure of R524 890 million is below 

the approved budget by R372 094, mostly due to lesser 

spending on discretionary grants. This translated into 

a surplus of the same amount, for which the LGSETA 

has applied for rollover with the Department of Higher 

Education and Training and is in the process of submitting 

a similar request with the National Treasury.

The discretionary grants regulations require that at least 

80% of the discretionary grant budget is allocated to 

pivotal projects. In the 2021-22 financial year, the SETA 

met this requirement as Pivotal projects exceeded the 

80% threshold. R429 975 million out of R436 222 million 

of the discretionary budget allocations was allocated to 

pivotal projects, representing 98.57%.

The budget statement in the Annual Financial Statements 

(AFS) and the accompanying note 33 outlines spending 

trend for the budget line items and provides context on 

the reasons for the actual expenditures.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

Supply Chain Management (SCM) continues to form an 

integral part of the LGSETA discharging its core business 

mandate. The LGSETA executive management continued 

to monitor the day-to-day spending of the organisation 

to ensure that it is in line with the approved legislative 

requirements including PPPFA.

In the year under review the SCM department 

experienced some challenges where the department 

was operating without an SCM Manager for six months. 

The SCM Manager was  appointed in January 2022. 

There were no unsolicited bids awarded during the 

financial year under review.

The SETA has developed SCM processes and systems, 

with SCM policies that have been  approved. 

AUDIT REPORT MATTERS IN THE PREVIOUS 

YEAR AND HOW THEY WOULD BE 

ADDRESSED

Audit report matters in the previous year were largely 

addressed by management, no material recurring 

findings were raised in the current audit report on 

matters relating to commitment schedule. Additionally, 

management is embarking on a corrective action which 

will include root cause identification through a multi-year 

commitment reconstruction project to clean-up  the 

commitment schedule of the LGSETA. This will assist in 

the improvement of the internal controls.
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The period under review saw a quest by management 

and the Board in a path to improve the health of 

the organisation by reviewing more than 40 policies that 

had been long recurring findings by the Auditor-General   

South Africa. 

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The year was characterized by the LGSETA implementing 

the consequence management framework wherein the 

Board took a decision to terminate the tenure of the 

previous audit and risk committee due to weaknesses and 

the precautionary suspension of four executives pending 

forensic investigations.

APPRECIATION  

I would firstly like to thank the Minister of Higher 

Education, Science and Innovation and the Board 

of Directors of LGSETA for entrusting me with this 

mammoth task of leading this organisation at this crucial 

time of implementing the National Skills Development 

Plan 2030. 

I would also like to thank the executive management 

team led by Ms. Nonhle Mashinini, Ms Hazel Madibana,                  

Ms Josie Singaram and Mr. Jeremiah Thothela who 

steered the ship and acted as Executives, who when 

they were called to assist the organisation in the absence 

of the precautionary suspended executives, availed 

themselves tirelessly to evade what would have been 

catastrophic for the LGSETA. 

Appreciations to the staff of LGSETA at head office 

and provinces, who continue doing their best under the 

circumstances and continue to make us proud. To those 

who have retired and resigned we also appreciate them 

in absentia.

Now more than ever, we have noticed that service 

delivery at local government is non-negotiable and we 

need to be equal to the task and revive the pursuit of 

skills revolution that will eventually create greater impact 

in our communities. 

Yours in Skills Development

Ineeleng Molete

LGSETA: Chief Executive Officer
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STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY 

STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY AND CONFIRMATION OF ACCURACY FOR THE ANNUAL REPORT

To the best of my knowledge and belief, I confirm the 

following: 

All information and amounts disclosed in the Annual 

Report is consistent with the annual financial statements 

audited by the Auditor-General of South Africa.

The Annual Report is complete, accurate and free from 

any omissions.

The Annual Report has been prepared in accordance 

with the guidelines on the Annual Report as issued by 

National Treasury.

The Annual Financial Statements (Part E) have been 

prepared in accordance with the GRAP standards 

applicable to the public entity.

The Accounting Authority is responsible for the 

preparation of the annual financial statements and for 

the judgements made in this information.  

The Accounting Authority is responsible for establishing 

and implementing a system of internal control that has 

been designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the 

integrity and reliability of the performance information, 

human resources information and the annual financial 

statements.

The external auditors are engaged to express an 

independent opinion on the annual financial statements.

In our opinion, the Annual Report fairly reflects the 

operations, performance information, human resources 

information and the financial affairs of the public entity 

for the financial year ended 31 March 2022.

Yours faithfully 

Phumlani Mntambo Ineeleng Molete

LGSETA: Chairperson LGSETA: Chief Executive Officer
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STRATEGIC OVERVIEW

VISION
To be a highly skilled and capable local 

government

MISSION

To build local government’s ability to meet 

its developmental needs through innovative 

approaches, effective capacity building and 

strategic partnerships.

VALUES

The values embraced by the LGSETA are:

• A customer-centric approach

• Responsiveness

• Passion

• Integrity

• Collaboration 

• Innovation 

The LGSETA is one of 21 SETAs established in terms of Section 9 of the Skills 

Development Act, No. 97 of 1998, as amended, and reports to the Honourable 

Minister of Higher Education, Science and Innovation. The mandate of the LGSETA 

is to promote  and facilitate skills development for the local government sector.
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LEGISLATIVE AND OTHER MANDATES 

CONSTITUTIONAL MANDATE

The South African Constitution 1996, Section 152 

(1), outlines the following five main objects of local 

government, which provide the basis for the LGSETA to 

support skills development in key areas:  

• to provide democratic and accountable government 

for local communities; 

• to ensure the provision of services to communities 

in a sustainable manner; 

• to promote social and economic development; 

• to promote a safe and healthy environment; and 

• to encourage the involvement of communities and 

community organisations in the matters of local 

government.

 

Section 29(1) (a) and (b) of Act 108 of the South African 

Constitution provides for the State “to take reasonable 

measures to make adult and further education accessible 

to citizens, as a human right. Another important Section 

of the Constitution is Section 195(1) (a) to (i), which 

articulates the values and principles governing public 

administration, while these impact on good governance 

and accountability within and across municipalities.   

 

LEGISLATIVE AND POLICY MANDATES

The following key legislation, regulations, policies and 

strategies inform the mandate of the LGSETA.  The key 

aspects relating to implications for skills development in 

the local government sector have been considered for 

the purpose of aligning with the strategic focus areas of 

the LGSETA and corresponding priority interventions 

and initiatives.

Table 1: Key Legislation, Policies and Strategies relating to LGSETA

LEGISLATIVE ENVIRONMENT   DESCRIPTION 

Skills Development Act, No. 97  of 

1998 

The LGSETA mandate emanates from the Skills Development Act (SDA).

Skills Development Levies Act of 

1999

The Skills Development Levies Act (SDL) makes provision for levy 

employers to pay one percent (1%) of their payroll to the South African 

Revenue Service (SARS). 

National Qualifications 

Framework of Act 2008

The Act provides for the classification, registration and publication 

of articulated and quality-assured national qualifications and part 

qualifications. 

Public Finance Management Act  

of 1999

The PFMA regulates financial management in all spheres of government 

and government institutions so as to ensure that all revenue, expenditure, 

assets and liabilities of those governments are managed efficiently and 

effectively.

OTHER LEGISLATIVE MANDATES DESCRIPTION

Municipal Systems Act, No. 2 of 

2000

The Municipal Systems Act (MSA) requires that municipalities comply with 

the SDA and the SDL to develop their human resource capacity, perform 

their functions and exercise their powers in an economical, effective, 

efficient and accountable way.

Public Administration 

Management Act, No. 11 of 2014

The Public Administration Management Act (PAMA) was established 

to promote the basic values and principles governing the public 

administration referred to in Section 195(1) of the Constitution.
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OTHER LEGISLATIVE MANDATES DESCRIPTION

Intergovernmental Relations 

Framework Act, 2005 

The Intergovernmental Relations (IGR) Act applies to local, provincial and 

national spheres of government guided by the principles of cooperative 

government.  The aim of this act is to facilitate and coordinate the 

implementation of policy and legislation to ensure coherence among 

the three spheres of government, effective provisioning of services and 

monitoring and evaluation.      

REGULATORY/ POLICY 

ENVIRONMENT

DESCRIPTION 

White Paper on Local Government 

(1998)

The White Paper on Local Government describes a shift towards a 

developmental local government that is people-orientated and outlines the 

characteristics of developmental local government.  

White Paper on Post-School 

Education and Training  (2013)

The White Paper on Post-School Education and Training (PSET) aims to 

establish a vision for the type of post-school education and training system 

that the Department of Higher Education and Training (DHET) desires by 

2030.

The New Growth Path (NGP): 

Framework

Government adopted the New Growth Path (NGP) as the framework for 

economic policy and the driver of the country’s jobs strategy.   

National Skills Accord (NSA) The NSA is a multi-constituency agreement between businesses, organised 

labour and community constituents and was signed to support the NGP 

target of creating five million jobs by 2020.

Youth Employment Accord The Youth Empowerment Accord has six commitments to develop youth 

absorption programmes.

Green Economy Accord The Green Economy Accord includes commitments by stakeholders 

towards a greener economy in South Africa.

National Treasury Regulations In terms of Section 76 of the Act, the National Treasury may make 

regulations or issue instructions applicable to all institutions to which 

the Act applies to promote and enforce transparency and effective 

management in respect of revenue, expenditure, assets and liabilities.

Guideline for Implementation 

of the Revised Framework for 

Strategic and Annual Performance 

Plans 2020

The Revised Framework for Strategic Plans and Annual Performance 

Plans (2020) as issued by the Department of Planning, Monitoring and 

Evaluation (DPME) with the purpose of providing principles for short- and 

medium-term planning for government institutions ; and to describe how 

institutional plans are to align with high level government medium- and 

long-term plans and the institutional processes for the different types of 

plans.

STRATEGY ENVIRONMENT DESCRIPTION

Back-To-Basics Strategy (2014) This involves the Back-to-Basics Strategy which is aimed at turning around 

ailing municipalities to ensure that local government better performs basic 

functions.  

National Development Plan 

(2030)

The NDP (2030) aims to eliminate poverty and reduce inequality by 2030 

through growing an inclusive economy, building capabilities and enhancing 

the capacity of the state across the education system and workplace.  

Table 1: Key Legislation, Policies and Strategies relating to LGSETA (continued)
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STRATEGY ENVIRONMENT DESCRIPTION

National Skills Development Plan 

(NSDP) 2030

The NSDP is derived from the broader NDP 2030.  The aim of the NSDP is 

to ensure that South Africa has an educated, skilled and capable workforce 

by 2030.

National Human Resource 

Development Strategy South 

Africa (2030)

The aim of the Human Resource Development Strategy (2030) outlines 

key priorities of the South African government to address poverty and 

unemployment and ensure that the public sector has people that are skilled 

through the provision and outcomes of education and skills development 

programmes.  

Integrated Urban Development 

Framework

The Integrated Urban Development Framework focuses on building an 

integrated and efficient spatial system and is aligned to the proposals 

outlined in the NDP 2030.  Core initiatives include planning for liveable, 

economically viable and sustainable towns, cities and rural areas.

District Development Model The DDM is a joint plan that is developed through cooperative governance for 

the three spheres of government who will function in unison to implement 

it. The aim of the DDM is to manage urbanisation, growth and development, 

determining and supporting local economic drivers, managing spatial form, 

land release and land development as well as determining infrastructure 

investment requirements to ensure long-term infrastructure adequacy and 

support integrated human settlements and provision of basic services to 

communities.

Economic Reconstruction and 

Recovery Plan (ERRP) 

The Economic Reconstruction and Recovery Plan focuses on interventions 

to allow large numbers of young people to access opportunities in the 

short-term to ensure that they are able to be absorbed into high-potential 

growth sectors in order to boost job creation and up-skill workers so as to 

enhance productivity.

Economic Reconstruction and 

Recovery Skills Strategy (ERRSS)

The Economic Reconstruction and Recovery Skills Strategy presents key 

interventions to support the ERRP from a skills perspective. The strategy 

outlines ten (10) skills interventions, as follows:

1. Embedding skills planning into sectoral processes.

2. Updating or amending technical and vocational education programmes.

3. Increasing access to programmes resulting in qualifications in priority 

sectors.

4. Increasing access to targeted skills programmes.

5. Increasing access to workplace experience.

6. Supporting entrepreneurship and innovation.

7. Retraining/ up-skilling employees to preserve jobs.

8. Meeting demand outlined in the List of Critical Occupations.

9. Facilitating the National Pathway Management Network.

10. Strengthening the post-school education and training system.

Table 1: Key Legislation, Policies and Strategies relating to LGSETA (continued)
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AUDITOR-GENERAL’S REPORT:   

PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES

The AGSA performed the necessary audit procedures 

on the performance information to provide reasonable 

assurance in the form of an audit conclusion. The 

audit conclusion about the performance against 

predetermined objectives is included in the report to 

management, with any material findings reported under 

the Predetermined Objectives heading in the Report on 

other legal and regulatory requirements Section of the 

Auditor-General’s report.

Refer to page 57 of the Report of the Auditor-General 

published as Part E: Financial Information.

SITUATIONAL ANALYSIS

SERVICE DELIVERY ENVIRONMENT

The LGSETA, like all other SETAs, plays a central role in 

making sure that the NSDP 2030 outcome priorities are 

fulfilled. The LGSETA does not conduct training. Instead, 

it facilitates the process of training through paying grants, 

both mandatory and discretionary, registering moderators 

and assessors, accrediting providers, implementing 

programmes and projects to address the skills gaps, 

monitoring the quality of training and measuring the impact 

through conducting evaluations and impact studies.

The LGSETA’s management in the year under review 

continued to reinforce systems and processes as to 

support the implementation of the strategy. Informed 

by research and labour market intelligence systems 

aimed at strengthening targeted learning interventions 

through a new discretionary grants window system, as 

well as implementing a partnership strategy to deliver its 

mandate and ensuring compliance, control systems and 

risk enterprise management  are adhered to and these 

will remain the SETA’s priority areas and focus in the 

implementation of the new five-year strategy.

The 2021-2022 financial year signals year two 

implementation of the NSDP 2030 outcomes, which 

continued to be disrupted by the effects of the COVID-19 

pandemic, service delivery protests and natural disasters. 

These disruptions affected the SETA service delivery 

environment. Furthermore, the local government 

elections results,  and the reopening of the economy and 

easing of the COVID-19 pandemic restrictions, led to the 

review of the LGSETA service delivery approach which 

had to be realigned with the demands of the sector. 

In making adjustments, the LGSETA took an agile 

approach in its service delivery. Through strengthening 

the implementation of projects informed by the 

partnership model, councillor development strategy, 

identification of skills gaps and shortages in support of 

the District Development Model (DDM) and the Economic 

Reconstruction and Recovery Skills Strategy (ERRSS). 

ORGANISATIONAL ENVIRONMENT 

This report presents performance information against 

predetermined objectives as prescribed in the 2021-2022 

Annual Performance Plan (APP). The latter identifies the 

performance indicators and targets that the LGSETA 

committed for the year under review. This report is 

analysed at programme level by outlining performance 

indicators and targets for budget programmes so as to 

facilitate goals and objectives set out in the Strategic 

Plan (SP). It further highlights the reasons for deviations 

in instances where planned targets were not achieved by 

identifying emerging trends and patterns to show how 

these contributed to the overall annual targets.

The 2021-2022 financial year also demonstrated the 

commitment of the LGSETA to serve South Africa’s nerve 

centre of service delivery, namely the local government 

sphere, by promoting and supporting skills development. 

The LGSETA rose to this challenge and ended the 

financial year with an overall performance achievement 

of 62% or 44 Annual Performance Plan (APP) targets 

either achieved or over-achieved. To reinforce this 

performance, the SETA consistently adhered to all 

statutory requirements of delivering services to its 

beneficiaries in pursuit of its mandate.  
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STRATEGIC 

OUTCOME 1

ENHANCING GOOD 

GOVERNANCE, 

LEADERSHIP AND 

MANAGEMENT 

CAPABILITIES

PROGRESS TOWARDS ACHIEVEMENT OF INSTITUTIONAL IMPACT AND OUTCOMES

This section presents summary highlights of LGSETA’s institutional achievements against impact and outcomes that 

were aligned to its strategic objectives. 

LGSETA STRATEGIC OUTCOMES

The five outcomes of the LGSETA discussed below embody a direct response to the priorities set in the NSDP and 

the NDP.

STRATEGIC OUTCOME ADDRESSED THROUGH THE FOLLOWING

To encourage management and leadership including councillor development 

and traditional leadership capacity building, the LGSETA continued to 

support two (2) trade unions SALGA and IMATU in terms of various relevant 

skills training interventions, including the councillor induction programme.

STRATEGIC OUTCOME ADDRESSED THROUGH THE FOLLOWING 

The LGSETA conducted and produced seven(7) research studies with the 

aim of providing sustainable solutions related to infrastructure and service 

delivery, municipal planning and spatial transformation and inclusion.  The 

following research were conducted for the period under review.

• Understanding the IT Infrastructure in the identification of business 

continuity risk and explore skills development interventions in the local 

government sector.

• Developing a database of career development practitioners in the local 

government sector. 

• Understanding the role of e-apprenticeship as an alternative delivery 

design to promote TVET growth. 

• Exploring the Smart City Concept’s impact on the local government 

sector.

• Identifying digital skills needs for  established and emergent Co-Operatives 

in the local government sector.

• Identifying  digital skills needs for established  and emergent SMME’s in 

the local government sector.

• Develop local economic development for marine resources at municipal 

level.

STRATEGIC OUTCOME ADDRESSED THROUGH THE FOLLOWING 

LGSETA facilitated the strengthening of infrastructure and service delivery 

through support to 17 partnerships established including TVET, CET colleges 

and universities. 

Further support was provided to employers to open access and skills training 

for 9 374 learners. The figure below illustrates the interventions provided 

for the period under review. Work-Integrated Learning (1 205), skills 

programmes (3 630), learnerships (2 930) and 364 graduates were placed 

in internship positions, 107 learners completed candidacy and 1 138 bursaries 

awarded to both unemployed and employed beneficiaries.

STRATEGIC 

OUTCOME 2

PROMOTING SOUND 

FINANCIAL  

MANAGEMENT AND 

FINANCIAL VIABILITY

STRATEGIC 

OUTCOME 3

ENHANCING 

INFRASTRUCTURE AND 

SERVICE DELIVERY
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LGSETA INTERVENTION 2021/22

10 000

8 000

6 000

4 000

2 000

0

Candidacy Bursaries Skills 

programmes

Learnerships Internships Work Integrated 

Learning (WIL)

Total 

beneficiaries 

supported

9 374

1 205364

2 930

3 630

1 138107

STRATEGIC OUTCOME ADDRESSED THROUGH THE FOLLOWING 

LGSETA complied with the 20% mandatory grants disbursement as 

legislated. Overall, for the period under review, 293 Workplace Skills Plans 

(WSPs) were approved and R216 193 774. 02 million was disbursed through 

mandatory grants.

The table below illustrates the 2021-2022 LGSETA mandatory WSP 

disbursement, including the value per province.

PROVINCE APPROVED WSP

VALUE OF WSP MANDATORY 

GRANTS DISBURSED PER 

PROVINCE

Eastern Cape 44 (15%) R20 773 085,11 (10%)

Free State 25 (9%) R9 957 276,42 (5%)

Gauteng 27 (9%) R66 764 725,74 (28%)

Kwazulu-Natal 56 (19%) R39 251 526,32 (19%)

Limpopo 29 (10%) R12 322 890,05 (6%)

Mpumalanga 24(8%) R11 752 162,32 (11%)

Northwest 25 (9%) R7 624 614,78 (4%)

Northern Cape 31(11%) R5 137 318,48 (2%)

Western Cape 32 (11%) R42 600 174,80 (20%)

TOTAL 293 R 216 193 774,02

STRATEGIC 

OUTCOME 4

ENHANCING MUNICIPAL 

PLANNING

STRATEGIC OUTCOME ADDRESSED THROUGH THE FOLLOWING 

The LGSETA supported 5 rural development projects initiated with specific 

focus on enhancing skills development initiatives.

 A total of 20 cooperatives and 21 small businesses were funded in order to 

strengthen community development, while 21 CBOs /NGOs /NPOs were 

supported by means of training interventions.

STRATEGIC 

OUTCOME 5

PROMOTING SPATIAL 

TRANSFORMATION AND 

INCLUSION  

LGSETA PROJECTS SUPPORTED

30

20

10

0

CBO/NGO/

NPO’s

Small business 

supported

Co-operatives 

supported

Rural projects 

supported

21

2021

5
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Table 2 below reflects the LGSETA’s performance against the NSDP outcomes.

NSDP OUTCOME 2021-2022 LGSETA-NSDP PROGRESS UPDATE 

1. Identify and increase production of 

occupations in high demand

In order to support planning processes in the Post-School Education and Training 

(PSET) sector, the SETA, through its discretionary grants mechanism, allocated 

grants  to a total of 13% for high skills, 38% for intermediate skills and 49% for 

elementary skills.

A total of 64 Career Development and Advice Practitioners were trained on career 

development. 

Three Qualifications, Learning Material and RPL Toolkits were developed for the 

period under review.

2. Link education and the workplace Through its Work-Integrated Learning (WIL) intervention, the SETA facilitated 

linkages between the labour market and TVET colleges for  1 096 students and 109 

university students. A further 364 and 107 beneficiaries were supported through 

internships and candidacy programme respectively.

3. Improve the level of skills in the 

South African workforce

Through mandatory and discretionary grants, the SETA supported employed workers. 

Overall, 404 workers were awarded bursaries, 2 366 participated in skills programmes 

and 48 were supported though the AET programme.

4. Increase access to occupationally 

directed programmes

During the period under review, the SETA supported 244  learners in the Artisan 

development programme and 160 were supported through RLP or ARPL.

5. Support the growth of the public 

college institutional type as a key 

provider of skills required for socio-

economic development

In terms of strengthening implementation of the Post-School Education and 

Training System (PSET) the SETA supported the following institutions.

Higher Education Institutions (HEI): a total of six (6) HEI partnerships were 

established

TVET Colleges:  maintenance of 3 TVET Colleges, 20 TVET lecturers exposed to 

the industry through a skills programme, 24 TVET managers received training on 

curriculum-related studies and 20 TVET College Lecturers were awarded Bursaries. 

A total of six (6) TVET partnerships were established.

CET Colleges: 25 CET College lecturers were awarded Skills Development 

Programmes, 25 CET Managers received training on curriculum-related studies. 

5 CET partnerships were established and 898 CET learners accessed AET 

programmes.

6. Support skills development  for 

entrepreneurship and cooperative 

development

To advance skills development, support for entrepreneurship was provided for 50 

people who were trained on entrepreneurial skills, while 20 cooperatives and 21 

small businesses were supported by means of training interventions or  funding.

7. Encourage and support worker-

initiated training

A total of 2 trade unions were supported through worker education and training 

initiatives which were critical for unions (including shop stewards and union officials). 

8.Support career development 

services

For building career development initiatives, the SETA supported 41 career 

development events/ exhibitions and participated in urban and rural areas on 

occupations in high demand. In addition 9 capacity building workshops on career 

development services were hosted.

The figure below  reflects the LGSETA % achievement per NSDP outcome.

NSDP Outcome 1
Identify and Increase Production of 

Occupations In High Demand

NSDP Outcome 2 Linking education and the workplace

NSDP Outcome 3
Improving the level of skills in the South 

African workforce

NSDP Outcome 4
Increase access to occupationally 

directed programmes

NSDP Outcome 5

Support the growth of the public college 

institutional type as a key provider 

of skills required for socio-economic 

development.

NSDP Outcome 6

Skills development support for 

entrepreneurship and cooperative 

development

NSDP Outcome 7
Encourage and support worker-initiated 

training

NSDP Outcome 8 Support Career Development Services

2021/22 % LGSETA NSDP ACHIEVED 

16%

12%

6%

5%16%

15%

15%

15%
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INSTITUTIONAL PROGRAMME  

PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

CLASSIFICATION OF PERFORMANCE

COLOUR CODE

Progress in % 0% to 70% 71% to 99% 100% and above 

Description of Classification
Non –achievement of planned 

targets

Partial achievement of 

planned targets

Full achievement of planned 

targets

LGSETA THREE-YEAR PERFORMANCE OF THE LGSETA

This Section centres on the LGSETA three-year trend analysis on the APP.

LGSETA 3-YEAR PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS 

80 100%

60 75%

40 50%

20 25%

0 0%

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

65

31

48%

71

47
66%

71

44
62%

LGSETA’s performance over a three-year period (2019-

2020 to 2021-2022) shows a fluctuating trend over time: 

• During 2019-2020, the overall performance 

achievement was 48%.

• During 2020-2021, the overall performance 

achievement was 62% indicating an improvement of 

44% for the financial year under review.

• During 2021-2022, the overall performance showed 

a slight decline of 4%

It is important to note that the comparison of the two 

previous financial years 2019-2020 was part of the third 

National Skills Development Strategy (NSDS III) which 

came to an end on 31 March 2020. The 2020-2021 

to 2021-2022 financial year reflects a new strategic 

trajectory of the NSDP 2030, which responds to the 

policy goals of the White Paper on Post School Education 

and Training aimed at improving both the integration of 

the Post-School Education and Training system (PSET). 
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The 2021-2022 high level performance information per programme is illustrated below.

• Programme 1 showed an achievement of (6) out of 

the 10 planned targets, that is, 60%.

• Programme 2 showed an achievement of (7) out of 

the 7 planned targets, that is, 100%.

• Programme 3 showed an achievement of 27 out of 

the 49 planned targets, that is, 55%.

• Programme 4 showed an achievement of (4) out of 

the 5 planned targets, that is, 80%.

LGSETA OVERALL 2021/22 PERFORMANCE 

80 100%

60 75%

40 50%

20 25%

0 0%

Programme 1 Programme 2 Programme 3 Programme 4 Overall 

2021/22 

achievement

10
6 7 7

1
0

0
%

49

27

5 4

71

446
0

%

5
5

%

8
0

%

6
2

%
Target Actual % Achieved

KEY POLICY DEVELOPMENTS AND LEGISLATIVE CHANGES

Skills Development Circular 01/ 2020: Judgement of Labour Appeal Court of 16/ 10/ 2019, which set aside Regulation 

4 (4) on the allocation of the mandatory grant of the levy paid by an employer.

PROGRAMME 1: ADMINISTRATION

The Administration programme’s objective is to enhance internal capacity and the capability of LGSETA staff to 

enable the organisation to implement effective, efficient and transparent administration and governance of the 

LGSETA.  The administration has three sub-programmes: 

• Corporate

• Finance

• Internal Audit and Risk Management

OUTCOMES, OUTPUTS INDICATORS, TARGETS AND ACTUAL ACHIEVEMENTS 

The Administration programme carried a proportional weight of 14% from 71 planned indicators and targets. 

The performance assessment of Programme  showed an achievement of (6) 60% achievement out of the 10 

planned targets for the 2021-2022 financial year. The figure and highlighted information below illustrate significant 

achievements and service delivery challenges encountered by the LGSETA.

SIGNIFICANT SUCCESSES

• Unqualified Audit

• 91% resolved audit findings

• 41 career development events/exhibitions hosted

• 64 career development and advice practitioners 

trained

• 9 Capacity building workshops on career development 

hosted

CHALLENGES 

• Capacity issues due to delays in recruitment and 

organisational structure under review 

• Risk mitigating measures NOT implemented  

PROGRAMME 1:  2021/22 PERFORMANCE 

10 100%

5 50%

0 0%

Targets Actual % Achievement

10

6 60%

Table 3 overleaf outlines in detail the administration 

programme’s annual performance achievements as per 

the APP by outlining the performance indicators, targets, 

achievements, deviation and reasons for deviations from 

targets (where applicable).
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Programme 1: Administration (Finance, Internal Audit and Risk Management)

OUTPUT OUTPUT INDICATOR

AUDITED ACTUAL 

PERFORMANCE

2019-2020

AUDITED ACTUAL 

PERFORMANCE

2020-2021

PLANNED 

ANNUAL 

TARGET  

2021-2022

ACTUAL 

ACHIEVEMENT

2021-2022

DEVIATION FROM 

PLANNED TARGET 

TO ACTUAL 

ACHIEVEMENT

2021-2022

REASONS FOR  

DEVIATIONS

REASON FOR 

REVISIONS TO 

THE OUTPUT/

OUTPUT 

INDICATOR/

ANNUAL 

TARGET

Effective Internal Controls and Compliance Monitoring Systems

Unqualified Audit 

Outcome

1.1 Unqualified 

Audit Opinion 

achieved

Unqualified 

Audit

Unqualified 

Audit

Unqualified 

Audit

Unqualified 

Audit

(0%) Target achieved for 

2021-2022.

N/A

Payment of  

discretionary 

grant suppliers 

paid within 30 

days 

1.2 Percentage 

of discretionary 

grant suppliers 

paid within 

30 days upon 

submission 

of  compliant 

grants 

documents

New indicator 

not planned 

for 2019-2020

94% 100% 74% -26% Delays experienced 

due to suppliers 

submitting non-

compliant invoices 

to the LGSETA.  

Submission of pro- 

forma invoice will 

address the delays 

for payments 

within the required 

timeframe.

N/A

Payment of 

corporate 

suppliers paid 

within 30 days

1.3 Percentage 

of corporate 

suppliers 

paid within 

30 days upon 

submission of 

valid  invoice

New indicator 

not planned 

for 2019-2020

98% 100% 92% -8% N/A

Implementation of 

recommendations 

from internal and 

external reviews 

1.4 Percentage 

of audit findings 

resolved  

42% 90% 90% 91% +1% Overachievement 

was due to 

monitoring 

mitigations on a 

bi-weekly basis 

from the end of 

quarter 3, which 

contributed to the 

increase.

N/A

Implementation of 

risk management 

framework and 

policies

1.5 Percentage 

of risk 

mitigating 

measures 

implemented

New indicator 

not planned 

for 2019-2020

0% 50% 3,70% -46,3% The risk philosophy 

has not been fully 

integrated into 

the organisational 

culture of the 

SETA. The LGSETA 

is in process of 

appointment of the 

Risk Management 

Committee 

Chairperson to 

enhance risk 

management 

culture in the 

organisation.

N/A

SETA Governance 

Reports

1.6 SETA 

Governance 

Reports 

compiled and 

submitted to 

DHET

New indicator 

not planned 

for 2019-2020

4 (100%) 4 4 (100%) (0%) Target achieved for 

2021-2022.

N/A

Table 3: Programme 1: Administration
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Programme 1 : Administration (Corporate Services)

OUTPUT OUTPUT INDICATOR

AUDITED ACTUAL 

PERFORMANCE

2019-2020

AUDITED ACTUAL 

PERFORMANCE

2020-2021

PLANNED 

ANNUAL 

TARGET  

2021-2022

ACTUAL 

ACHIEVEMENT

2021-2022

DEVIATION FROM 

PLANNED TARGET 

TO ACTUAL 

ACHIEVEMENT

2021-2022

REASONS FOR  

DEVIATIONS

REASON FOR 

REVISIONS TO 

THE OUTPUT/

OUTPUT 

INDICATOR/

ANNUAL 

TARGET

Resilient, Skilled and Capable Local Government SETA Administration

Career 

development 

interventions 

1.7 Number 

of career 

development 

events/ 

exhibitions 

participated 

in urban and 

rural areas on 

occupations in 

high demand

New indicator 

not planned 

for 2019-2020

30 (100%) 30 41 (137%) +11 (37%) Overachievement 

was due to high 

demand of events 

that the LGSETA 

had to respond to.

N/A

Training of  career 

development 

practitioners on 

occupations in 

high demand

1.8 Number 

of career 

development 

and advice  

practitioners  

trained 

on career 

development

New indicator 

not planned 

for 2019-2020

25 (100%) 25 64(256%) +39 (156%) Overachievement 

was due to higher 

attendance of 

stakeholders than 

anticipated.

N/A

1.9 Number 

of capacity 

building 

workshops 

on career 

development 

services 

conducted

New indicator 

not planned 

for 2019-2020

9 (100%) 9 9 (100%) (0%) Target achieved for 

2021-2022.

N/A

Vacancy rate 1.10 Percentage 

of vacant 

positions 

maintained

New indicator 

not planned 

for 2019-2020

7.58% 5% 10.6% -5.6% Introduction 

of change 

management and 

organisational 

redesign. The 

LGSETA will 

prioritise the filling 

of critical positions 

in the new financial 

year.

N/A

LINKING PERFORMANCE WITH BUDGETS

The table below depicts expenditure against the budget for the reporting under review and the previous financial year for the 

programme and sub-programmes. 

PROGRAMME 1

ADMINISTRATION

2020-2021 2021-2022

BUDGET

R’000

ACTUAL 

EXPENDITURE

R’000

(OVER)/ UNDER 

EXPENDITURE

R’000

BUDGET

R’000

ACTUAL 

EXPENDITURE

R’000

(OVER)/ UNDER 

EXPENDITURE

R’000

Administration 

costs

58 692 42 251 16 441 74 969 57 071 17 928

Employee 

costs

40 150 30 399 9 751 68 522 93 018 (24 496)

Total 98 842 72 650 26 192  143 491 150 089 (6568)
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PROGRAMME 2: SKILLS PLANNING 

The objective of the Skills Planning Programme is to conduct research and management of the mandatory grants 

process aimed at improving the quality of the LGSETA’s skills planning and identification of interventions needed 

to facilitate access to appropriate skills development in the sector. The Skills Planning Programme has three sub-

programmes: 

• Research

• Sector Skills Planning

• Monitoring and Evaluation

OUTCOMES, OUTPUTS INDICATORS, TARGETS AND ACTUAL ACHIEVEMENTS 

The Skills Planning Programme carried a proportional weight of 10% from 71 planned indicators and targets. The 

performance assessment of Programme 1 showed an impressive achievement of (7) or 100% achievement out of the 

7 planned targets for the 2021-2022 financial year.  The figure and highlighted information below illustrate significant 

achievements for the programme. 

SIGNIFICANT SUCCESSES

• 5 Research projects conducted

• 1 Research agreement signed

• 2 Identified skills needs for established and emergent 

cooperatives and small and emerging enterprises

• 100 % WSPs /ATRs submissions approved

• 1 Validated quarterly performance report

• 2 Evaluation Studies conducted

PROGRAMME 2:  2021/22 PERFORMANCE 

10 100%

5 50%

0 0%

Targets Actual % Achievement

7

100%

7
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Table 5 below outlines in detail the Skills Planning Programme’s annual performance achievements as per the APP by outlining 

the performance indicators, targets, achievements, deviation and reasons for deviation of targets (where applicable).

 PROGRAMME 2: SKILLS PLANNING 

OUTPUT OUTPUT INDICATOR

AUDITED ACTUAL 

PERFORMANCE

2019-2020

AUDITED ACTUAL 

PERFORMANCE

2020-2021

PLANNED 

ANNUAL 

TARGET  

2021-2022

ACTUAL 

ACHIEVEMENT

2021-2022

DEVIATION FROM 

PLANNED TARGET 

TO ACTUAL 

ACHIEVEMENT

2021-2022

REASONS FOR  

DEVIATIONS

REASON FOR 

REVISIONS TO 

THE OUTPUT/

OUTPUT 

INDICATOR/

ANNUAL 

TARGET

Research Reports  2.1 Number 

of research 

projects 

conducted 

on skills 

development 

needs in 

the local 

government 

sector

10 6 (100%) 5 5 (100%) (0%) Target achieved for  

2021-2022.

N/A

Research 

agreements 

signed

2.2 Number of 

sector research 

agreements 

signed for 

TVET growth 

occupationally 

directed  

programmes

New indicator 

not planned 

for 2019-2020

1 (100%) 1 1 (100%) (0%) Target achieved for 

2021-2022.

N/A

Emergent  

cooperatives, 

small and 

emerging 

enterprise needs 

identified

2.3 

Identification 

of skills needs 

for established, 

emergent 

cooperatives, 

small and 

emerging 

enterprises 

through SETA 

skills planning 

research

New indicator 

not planned 

for 2019-2020

2 (100%) 2 2 (100%) (0%) Target achieved for  

2021-2022.

N/A

Improve 

compliant  WSP/ 

ATR submission in 

accordance with 

the SETA grant 

regulations

2.4 Percentage 

of WSP/ ATR 

submissions 

approved

286 (111%) 293(100%) 100% 293 (109%) +25 (9%) Overachievement 

was due to more 

private levy paying 

entities submitting 

WSP/ATR’s.

N/A

Sector Skills Plan 2.5 Sector 

skills plan 

developed to 

inform the skills 

development 

in the local 

government 

sector

1(100%) 1(100%) 1 1 (100%) (0%) Target achieved for  

2021-2022.

N/A

Improved Results based Monitoring and Evaluation System to Improve the Delivery of Skills Development, 

Programmes and Projects

Quarterly 

Performance 

Report 

2.6 Number 

of validated 

quarterly 

performance 

reports on 

predetermined 

objectives 

compiled

New indicator 

not planned 

for 2019-2020

4(100%) 4 4 (100%) (0%) Target achieved for  

2021-2022.

N/A

Evaluation Studies 2.7 Evaluation 

studies 

conducted 

on skills 

development 

programmes/ 

projects

2 (100%) 1(100%) 2 2 (100%) (0%) Target achieved for 

2021-2022.

N/A
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LINKING PERFORMANCE WITH BUDGETS

Table 6 below depicts expenditure against the budget for the reporting under review and the previous financial year 

for the programme and sub-programmes.  

PROGRAMME 2 

SKILLS PLANNING

2020-2021 2021-2022

BUDGET

R’000

ACTUAL 

EXPENDITURE

R’000

(OVER)/ UNDER 

EXPENDITURE

R’000

BUDGET

R’000

ACTUAL 

EXPENDITURE

R’000

(OVER)/ UNDER 

EXPENDITURE

R’000

Mandatory 

grants

123 720 129 881 (6 161) 182 821 216 194 (33 373)

Discretionary 

grants

0 8 488 (8 488) 13 500 152 835

Project 

Employee 

costs

12 151 12 088 63 13 154 25 968 (12 814)

Project 

Administration 

costs

2000 0 2 000 0 3 966 (3 966)

Total 137 871 150 457 (12 586) 209 475 398 963 (50 253)
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PROGRAMME 3: LEARNING PROGRAMMES 

The objective of the Learning Programme is to continuously facilitate the delivery of skills development to both 

employed and unemployed beneficiaries so as to enable better service delivery within the local government sector. 

Programme 3: Learning Programme has ten sub-programmes, which contribute 69% towards to the overall 2021-

2022 APP indicators and targets. 

The sub- programmes are as follows:

• Artisan Development

• Recognition prior learning (RPL)/ 

Artisan RPL (ARPL)

• Learnerships

• Internships

• Bursaries

• Skills programmes 

• Partnerships

• Work-Integrated Learning

• Candidacy and Artisan development

• AET programmes

OUTCOMES, OUTPUTS INDICATORS, TARGETS AND ACTUAL ACHIEVEMENTS 

The Skills Planning programme carried a proportional weight of 69% from 71 planned indicators and targets. The 

performance assessment of Programme 1 showed an achievement of (27) or 55% achievement out of the 49 

planned targets for the 2021-2022 financial year. The figure and highlighted information below illustrate significant 

achievements for the programme. 

SIGNIFICANT SUCCESSES

• 514 completions for TVET learners requiring WIL

• 847 completions for unemployed learners on skills 

programmes

• 957 entered unemployed learners in learnerships programme

• 888 completions for unemployed learners in learnerships

• 212 entered workers awarded bursaries

• 101 entered unemployed learners in candidacy programme

• 1 739 entered workers in skills programmes

• 153 continuing unemployed learners awarded bursaries

• 106 entered learners in RPL/ARPL

• 547 new entries for unemployed awarded bursaries

• 24 TVET/HEI/CET/SETA and Employer partnerships 

established 

• 3 SETA offices established and maintained

• 20 TVET lecturers exposed to industry skills programmes

• 20 TVET lecturers awarded bursaries

• 24 TVET managers trained on curriculum

• 25 CET managers trained on curriculum

• 25 CET college lecturers awarded skills development

• 866 entered CET learners accessing AET programmes

• 41 cooperatives and small businesses supported

• 50 people to be trained on entrepreneurial skills

• 21 CBO/NGOs/NPOs supported on training

• 2 trade unions supported on skills training interventions

• 5 rural development projects initiated 

PROGRAMME 3:  2021/22 PERFORMANCE 

50 100%

45 90%

40 80%

35 70%

30 60%

25 50%

20 40%

15 30%

10 20%

5 10%

0 0%

Targets Actual % Achievement

49

27

CHALLENGES 

• Accessing workplaces and availability of mentors 

• Learners taking other opportunities which led to dropouts 

(bursaries) 

• Submission of non-compliant documents

• Lack of uptake by employers (AET/HET and TVET WIL)

• Inadequate learner information collected

55%
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PROGRAMME 3: LEARNING PROGRAMMES

OUTPUT OUTPUT INDICATOR

AUDITED  

ACTUAL 

PERFORMANCE

2019-2020

AUDITED  

ACTUAL 

PERFORMANCE

2020-2021

PLANNED 

ANNUAL 

TARGET  

2021-2022

ACTUAL 

ACHIEVEMENT

2021-2022

DEVIATION FROM 

PLANNED TARGET 

TO ACTUAL 

ACHIEVEMENT

2021-2022 REASONS FOR  DEVIATIONS

REASON FOR 

REVISIONS TO THE 

OUTPUT/OUTPUT 

INDICATOR/

ANNUAL TARGET

Increased the Production of Occupations in High Demand in the Local Government Sector

National 

enrolment 

and resource 

ratios for high 

intermediate 

and 

elementary 

skills levels

3.1 

Percentage 

of 

discretionary 

grant budget 

allocated at 

developing 

skills levels

High skills 1%

Intermediate 

skills 71%

Elementary 

skills 28%

New 

indicator 

not planned 

for 2019-

2020

100% 100% High skills

13%

Intermediate 

skills 38%

Elementary 

skills 49%

+12% High 

skills

-33% 

Intermediate 

skills

+21% 

Elementary 

skills

There was higher 

demand for elementary 

and high-level skills 

assessed through 

discretionary grant 

applications. The 

LGSETA has made 

adjustment on the skills 

allocation in the outer 

years to address this 

challenge.

The only 

change in 

the APP was 

made on the 

TID for this 

Performance 

indicator 

and this was 

approved by 

the Minister of 

DHESI. 

Identification 

of 

interventions 

required 

to improve 

enrolment 

and 

completion 

of priority 

occupations

3.2 Number of learners 

completed learning 

interventions and placed 

in employment

New 

indicator 

not planned 

for 2019-

2020

63 50 0 (0%) - 50 (100%) Data for tracer studies 

was not available to 

enable tracer study 

to be conducted. The 

LGSETA will develop an 

M and E tracking tool 

to trace learners and 

ensure learner details 

is available for tracer 

studies.

N/A

Improved Work Based  Learning Opportunities Through Education in the Local Government Sector

Opening of 

workplace-

based 

learning 

opportunities 

increased

3.3 Number of 

TVET students 

requiring Work 

Integrated 

Learning to 

complete their 

qualifications 

placed in 

workplaces

E
n

t
e

r
e

d

1 214 (81%) 787 (131%) 600 582 (97%) - 18 (3%) Fewer responses on 

discretionary grants 

applications received 

from TVET colleges, 

therefore partnerships 

with TVET colleges 

and employers to be 

established going 

forward.     

N/A

C
o

m
p

le
t
e

d 143 (14%) 1 (0.3%) 400 514 (129%) + 114 (29%) Overachievement 

was due to a cohort 

of learners who could 

not access workplaces 

previously.

N/A

Opening of 

workplace-

based 

learning 

opportunities 

increased

3.4 Number 

of university 

students requiring 

Work Integrated 

Learning to 

complete their 

qualification placed 

in workplaces

E
n

t
e

r
e

d

98 (28%) 270 (90%) 300 57 (19%) - 243 (81%) Fewer applications 

were received from 

universities through 

discretionary grants.  

Partnerships with 

Universities to be 

established going 

forward.

N/A

C
o

m
p

le
t
e

d

0 (0%) 0 (0%) 200 52 (26%) -148 (74%) Accessing workplaces 

affected workplace-

based training 

and completions.

Partnerships with public 

and private sector 

will be established 

going forward. A 

completion strategy 

will be developed and 

implemented.

N/A

Table 7: Programme 3: Learning Programmes
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PROGRAMME 3: LEARNING PROGRAMMES

OUTPUT OUTPUT INDICATOR

AUDITED  

ACTUAL 

PERFORMANCE

2019-2020

AUDITED  

ACTUAL 

PERFORMANCE

2020-2021

PLANNED 

ANNUAL 

TARGET  

2021-2022

ACTUAL 

ACHIEVEMENT

2021-2022

DEVIATION FROM 

PLANNED TARGET 

TO ACTUAL 

ACHIEVEMENT

2021-2022 REASONS FOR  DEVIATIONS

REASON FOR 

REVISIONS TO 

THE OUTPUT/

OUTPUT 

INDICATOR/

ANNUAL 

TARGET

Increased the Production of Occupations in High Demand in the Local Government Sector (continued)

Opening of 

workplace-

based 

learning 

opportunities 

increased

3.5 Number of 

unemployed 

learners in an 

internship E
n

t
e

r
e

d

303 (30%) 115 (23%) 500 309 (62%) -191 (38%) Accessing workplaces affected 

workplace-based training and 

completions. Partnerships with 

public and private sector will 

be established going forward. 

A completion strategy will be 

developed and implemented.

N/A

C
o

m
p

le
t
e

d 2 (0%) 51 (13%) 500 55 (11%) -445 (89%) N/A

3.6 Number of 

unemployed 

learners in a skills 

programme

E
n

t
e

r
e

d

3 226 

(92%)

1877 

(188%)

1 000 369 (37%) -631 (63%) Many entities applied for 

qualifications that had 

a potential for greater 

employment opportunities 

compared to skills 

programmes.

The allocations for skills 

programmes for unemployed 

will be reviewed in future.  

Strategic partnerships will 

further assist with top-up 

funds to assist unemployed 

beneficiaries.

N/A

C
o

m
p

le
t
e

d

602 (27%) 912 (114%) 700 847 (121%) +147 (21%) Overachievement was due to 

timeous completion of skills 

programmes.

N/A

3.7 Number of 

unemployed 

learners enrolled 

for learnerships 

programmes

E
n

t
e

r
e

d

1 578 (53%) 687 (69%) 875 957 (109%) +82 (9%) Overachievement was a result 

of the decreased uptake in skills 

programmes and increased 

number of learnerships 

accepted which contributed to 

the achievement of qualification 

that was more meaningful and 

lead to employment.

N/A

C
o

m
p

le
t
e

d 495 (25%) 835 (104%) 700 888 (127%) +188 (27%) Overachievement was due 

to a cohort of learners who 

could not access workplaces 

previously.

N/A

3.8 Number of 

unemployed 

learners in 

a candidacy 

programme

E
n

t
e

r
e

d

102 (68%) 316 (316%) 100 101 (101%) +1 (1%) Overachievement was a result 

of allowing a buffer of 10% of 

the DG allocation to cater for 

any dropouts and /or non-

compliant documents.

N/A

C
o

m
p

le
t
e

d 144 (96%) 61(122%) 50 6 (12%) - 44 (88%) Delays were incurred in 

completing preparatory 

projects by a professional body. 

A completion strategy will be 

developed and implemented.

N/A

To increase 

workers’ 

participation 

in various 

learning 

programmes 

to a minimum 

of 80% by 

2030

3.9 Number 

of workers in 

learnership 

programmes E
n

t
e

r
e

d

2 012 (67%) 521 (35%) 1 150 478 (36%) -672 (58%) Fewer discretionary grant 

applications were received 

from employers.  The DG 

allocations will be informed by 

demand going forward. 

N/A

C
o

m
p

le
t
e

d

565 (25%) 285 (24%) 800 607 (76%) -193 (24%) There were delays in the 

submission of Portfolio of 

Evidence (PoEs) which affected 

completions of learners 

timeously.  A completions 

strategy will be developed and 

implemented.

N/A
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PROGRAMME 3: LEARNING PROGRAMMES

OUTPUT OUTPUT INDICATOR

AUDITED  

ACTUAL 

PERFORMANCE

2019-2020

AUDITED  

ACTUAL 

PERFORMANCE

2020-2021

PLANNED 

ANNUAL 

TARGET  

2021-2022

ACTUAL 

ACHIEVEMENT

2021-2022

DEVIATION FROM 

PLANNED TARGET 

TO ACTUAL 

ACHIEVEMENT

2021-2022 REASONS FOR  DEVIATIONS

REASON FOR 

REVISIONS TO 

THE OUTPUT/

OUTPUT 

INDICATOR/

ANNUAL 

TARGET

Increased the Production of Occupations in High Demand in the Local Government Sector (continued)

To address 

critical skills 

required 

by various 

sectors of 

the economy 

to transform 

workplaces

3.10 Number of 

workers awarded 

bursaries

E
n

t
e

r
e

d

230 (92%) 190 (106%) 200 212 (106%) +12 (6%) Overachievement was due to 

more applications received 

from bursaries for the workers 

in the sector.

N/A

C
o

n
t
in

u
in

g New 

indicator 

not planned 

for 2018-19

40 (32%) 125 43 (34%) -82 (66%) The previous year allocation 

was done for a one-year study 

of bursaries. The LGSETA has 

developed a bursary strategy to 

improve throughput.  

N/A

C
o

m
p

le
t
e

d

59(47%) 9 (3%) 350 149 (43%) -201 (57%) The bursars did not proceed 

into the next year and therefore 

the LGSETA withdrew funding 

referred to as dropouts.  The 

new bursary strategy to be 

implemented will improve 

throughput going forward. 

N/A

3.11 Number of 

workers in skills 

programmes

E
n

t
e

r
e

d

1246 (36%) 1 149 

(38%)

1 500 1 739 (116%) +239 (16%) Overachievement was 

due to training of new 

cohort of local government 

councillors informed by the 

local government Councillor 

Development Strategy.

N/A

C
o

m
p

le
t
e

d

216 (7%) 360 (18%) 1 000 627 (63%) -373 (37%) There were delays in the 

submission of PoEs which 

affected completions of 

learners timeously.  A 

completions strategy will be 

developed and implemented.

N/A

3.12  Number of 

workers in AET 

programmes

E
n

t
e

r
e

d

285 (14%) 100 (20%) 1 000 0 (0%) -1 000 

(100%)

Fewer applications for AET 

were received as part of the DG 

process. Targeted partnerships 

will be established to address 

the AET programme.

N/A

C
o

m
p

le
t
e

d

50 (3%) 155 (76%) 500 48 (10%) -452 (90%) There was limited uptake in the 

previous discretionary grant 

allocations which affected 

completions.  Targeted 

partnerships will be established 

to address AET in the next 

financial year.

N/A

3.13 Number 

of learners 

in an artisan 

development 

programme

E
n

t
e

r
e

d

New 

indicator 

not planned 

for 2019-

2020

497 (124%) 400 244 (61%) -156 (39%) There were non-compliant 

documents received which 

resulted in contracts not being 

finalised timeously. Hands-on 

support to stakeholders to 

ensure compliant documents.

N/A

C
o

m
p

le
t
e

d

New 

indicator 

not planned 

for 2019-

2020

7(2%) 300 0 (0%) -300 (100%) Due to the artisan programme 

spanning over 3 years, there was 

lack of access to workplaces 

and the unavailability of 

mentors due to remote working 

which affected workplace-based 

training.  Targeted approach 

for private sector partnership 

to be established to enhance 

availability of workplaces and 

mentors. 

N/A
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PROGRAMME 3: LEARNING PROGRAMMES

OUTPUT OUTPUT INDICATOR

AUDITED  

ACTUAL 

PERFORMANCE

2019-2020

AUDITED  

ACTUAL 

PERFORMANCE

2020-2021

PLANNED 

ANNUAL 

TARGET  

2021-2022

ACTUAL 

ACHIEVEMENT

2021-2022

DEVIATION FROM 

PLANNED TARGET 

TO ACTUAL 

ACHIEVEMENT

2021-2022 REASONS FOR  DEVIATIONS

REASON FOR 

REVISIONS TO 

THE OUTPUT/

OUTPUT 

INDICATOR/

ANNUAL 

TARGET

Increased the Production of Occupations in High Demand in the Local Government Sector (continued)

To address 

critical skills 

required 

by various 

sectors of 

the economy 

to transform 

workplaces

3.14 Number 

of unemployed 

learners awarded 

bursaries

N
e

w
 E

n
t
r
ie

s 593 (99%) 520 (104%) 500 547 (109%) +47 (9%) Overachievement was due 

to addressing critical skills 

through bursaries offered to 

the unemployed.

N/A

C
o

n
t
in

u
in

g New 

indicator 

not planned 

for 2018- 

2019

151 (121%) 125 153 (122%) +28 (22%) Overachievement was due to 

the previous year’s learners 

proceeding to the next level 

of study.

N/A

C
o

m
p

le
t
e

d

291 (83%) 150 (43%) 350 34 (9%) -316 (91%) The majority of the learners 

from the previous year had not 

completed their studies.  The 

new bursary strategy will be 

implemented going forward to 

ensure learners are supported 

to complete their studies 

timeously. 

N/A

3.15 Number of 

learners in RPL/ 

ARPL

E
n

t
e

r
e

d 50 (16%) 79 (44%) 100 106 (106%) +6 (6%) A new Discretionary Grant 

approach has been explored 

which resulted in more 

applications received for APRL.

N/A

C
o

m
p

le
t
e

d

50 (16%) 91 (114%) 80 54 (68%) -26 (32%) Some of the entered learners 

in ARPL/ RPL completed 

in the same financial year, 

which resulted in fewer 

completions for the year under 

review.. LGSETA to improve 

DG planning and implement 

completion strategy.  

N/A

3.16 Number 

of partnerships 

established

T
V

E
T

 C
o

ll
e

g
e

s 5(100%) 5 (100%) 5 6 (120%) +1 (20%) Overachievement was due 

to higher responses received 

through the DG partnership 

window.

N/A

H
E

I 5(100%) 5 (100%) 5 6 (120%) +1 (20%) N/A

C
E

T
 C

o
ll
e

g
e

s New 

indicator 

not planned 

for 2019-

2020

5 (100%) 5 5 (100%) 0 (0%) Target achieved for 2021-2022 

financial year.

N/A

3.17 Number of SETA-

employer partnerships 

established

3 (100%) 3 (100%) 7 7 (100%) 0 (0%) Target achieved for 2021-2022 

financial year.

N/A

Support 

TVET 

colleges

3.18 Number of SETA 

established and offices 

maintained in TVET 

colleges

New 

indicator not 

planned for 

2019-2020

3 (100%) 3 3 (100%) 0 (0%) Target achieved for 2021-2022 

financial year.

N/A

3.19 Number 

of Centres of 

Specialisation 

supported

New 

indicator 

not planned 

for 2019-

2020

5 (100%) 5 0 (0%) -5 (100%) Poor planning resulted in 

non-achievement of the target.  

Needs analysis on type of 

support required for Centres 

of Specialization (CoS). The 

LGSETA will procure services 

to support CoS based on the 

needs identified.

N/A

3.20 Number of TVET 

lecturers exposed to 

the industry through 

skills programme

33 (183%) 100 

(500%)

20 20 (100%) 0 (0%) Target achieved for 2021-2022 

financial year.

N/A
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PROGRAMME 3: LEARNING PROGRAMMES

OUTPUT OUTPUT INDICATOR

AUDITED  

ACTUAL 

PERFORMANCE

2019-2020

AUDITED  

ACTUAL 

PERFORMANCE

2020-2021

PLANNED 

ANNUAL 

TARGET  

2021-2022

ACTUAL 

ACHIEVEMENT

2021-2022

DEVIATION FROM 

PLANNED TARGET 

TO ACTUAL 

ACHIEVEMENT

2021-2022 REASONS FOR  DEVIATIONS

REASON FOR 

REVISIONS TO 

THE OUTPUT/

OUTPUT 

INDICATOR/

ANNUAL 

TARGET

Occupationally directed programmes in the local government sector 

Support 

TVET 

colleges

3.21 Number 

of managers 

receiving training 

on curriculum 

related studies 

per annum C
E

T
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r
s New 

indicator 

not planned 

for 2019-

2020

20 (100%) 20 25 (125%) +5 (25%) Overachievement was due 

to strengthening the role of 

community colleges through 

strategic partnership in the 

local government sector.  

N/A

T
V

E
T

 M
a

n
a
g

e
r
s 38 (100%) 18 (100%) 22 24 (109%) +2 (9%) Support to TVET colleges is 

one of the priority areas for the 

SETA in support of the NSDP 

outcomes. The beneficiary is 

a rural TVET college and the 

application led to the LGSETA 

awarding based on the need.

N/A

3.22 Number of TVET 

college lecturers 

awarded bursaries

New 

indicator 

not planned 

for 2019-

2020

0 (0%) 20 20 (100%) 0 (0%) Target achieved for 2021-2022 

financial year.

N/A

3.23 Number 

of CET college 

lecturers awarded 

skills development 

programmes

New 

indicator 

not planned 

for 2019-

2020

0 (0%) 20 25 (125%) +5 (25%) Overachievement was due 

to strengthening the role of 

community colleges through 

strategic partnership in the 

local government sector.  

N/A

3.24 Number 

of CET learners 

accessing AET 

programmes E
n

t
e

r
e

d

New 

indicator 

not planned 

for 2019-

2020

507 (101%) 700 866 (124%) +166 (24%) Overachievement was due 

to strengthening the role of 

community colleges through 

strategic partnership in the 

local government sector.  

N/A

C
o

m
p

le
t
e

d

New 

indicator 

not planned 

for 2019-

2020

0 (0%) 600 32 (5%) -568 (95%) CET colleges are yet to submit 

statement of results for the 

existing contracts.  There 

is a lack of coordination of 

CET centres that remains a 

challenge in the sector and this 

affected completions.   

A targeted approach will be 

developed to understand 

the required support that is 

needed.

N/A

To increase 

development 

support for 

entrepreneurial 

activities and 

establishment 

of new 

enterprises and 

cooperatives

3.25 Number 

cooperatives and 

small businesses 

supported 

with training 

interventions or 

funded

C
o

o
p

e
r
a

t
iv

e
s 30 (100%) 22 (110%) 20 20 (100%) 0 (0%) Target achieved for 2021-2022 

financial year.

N/A

S
m

a
ll
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s 20 (100%) 20 (100%) 20 21 (105%) +1 (5%) Overachievement was as a 

result of allowing a buffer of 

10% of the DG allocation to 

cater for any dropouts and/or 

non-compliant documents.

N/A

3.26 Number of 

people to be trained 

on entrepreneurial 

skills

20(100%) 30 (150%) 40 50 (125%) +10 (25%) Overachievement was due 

to strengthening support to 

entrepreneurs through the 

District Development Model.

N/A

3.27 Number of 

CBOs / NGOs / 

NPOs supported with 

training interventions 

or funded

35 (100%) 20 (100%) 20 21 (105%) +1 (5%) Overachievement was as a 

result of allowing a buffer of 

10% of the DG allocations to 

cater for any non-compliant 

documents from entities.

N/A
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PROGRAMME 3: LEARNING PROGRAMMES

OUTPUT OUTPUT INDICATOR

AUDITED  

ACTUAL 

PERFORMANCE

2019-2020

AUDITED  

ACTUAL 

PERFORMANCE

2020-2021

PLANNED 

ANNUAL 

TARGET  

2021-2022

ACTUAL 

ACHIEVEMENT

2021-2022

DEVIATION FROM 

PLANNED TARGET 

TO ACTUAL 

ACHIEVEMENT

2021-2022 REASONS FOR  DEVIATIONS

REASON FOR 

REVISIONS TO 

THE OUTPUT/

OUTPUT 

INDICATOR/

ANNUAL 

TARGET

Occupationally directed programmes in the local government sector 

To increase 

development 

support for 

entrepreneurial 

activities and 

establishment 

of new 

enterprises and 

cooperatives

3.28 Number of trade 

unions supported 

through the relevant 

skills training 

interventions

2 (100%) 2 (100%) 2 2 (100%) 0 (0%) Target achieved for 2021-2022 

financial year.

N/A

3.29 Number of rural 

development projects 

initiated

5 (100%) 5 (100%) 5 5 (100%) 0 (0%) Target achieved for 2021-2022 

financial year.

N/A

LINKING PERFORMANCE WITH BUDGETS

Table 8 below depicts expenditure against the budget for the reporting under review and the previous financial year in terms of 

the programme and its sub-programmes. 

PROGRAMME 3

LEARNING 

PROGRAMMES

2020-2021 2021-2022

BUDGET

R’000

ACTUAL 

EXPENDITURE

R’000

(OVER)/ UNDER 

EXPENDITURE

R’000

BUDGET

R’000

ACTUAL 

EXPENDITURE

R’000

(OVER)/ UNDER 

EXPENDITURE

R’000

Discretionary 

Grants

299 586 153 800 145 786 493 460 156 811 336 659

Project 

Employee 

Costs

33 000 35 920 (2 920) 38 270 25 968 12 302

Project 

Administrative 

Costs

2 400 0 2 400 0 3 966 (3 966)

Total 334 986 189 720 145 266 531 730 186 745 344 995
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PROGRAMME 4: QUALITY ASSURANCE PROGRAMME

The objective of the Quality Assurance programme is to develop occupational qualifications and quality-assure qualifications 

for the local government sector.  It has four sub-programmes: Qualification Development; Accreditation and Reaccreditation; 

Certification of Learners; and Establishment of Assessment Centres, which contribute 7% towards the overall 2021-2022 APP 

indicators and targets. 

SIGNIFICANT SUCCESSES

• 3 qualifications, learning materials and RPL toolkits developed 

• 100% SDPs accredited

• 3 assessment centres established

• 59 652 learners certified against unit standards

CHALLENGES

• The uptake for submitted qualification verifications and endorsements was 

lower than anticipated

PROGRAMME 4:  2021/22 PERFORMANCE 

5 100%

4 80%

3 60%

2 40%

1 20%

0 0%

Targets Actual % Achievement

5

4

In summary, for the period under review the Quality Assurance Programme showed an achievement of (4) 80% out of the 5 

planned targets for the 2021-2022 financial year. 

Table 9 below provides an account of Programme 4 annual performance achievements as per the APP by outlining the 

performance indicators, targets, achievements, deviations and reasons for deviation of targets (where applicable).

80%

PROGRAMME 4 : QUALITY ASSURANCE

OUTPUT OUTPUT INDICATOR

AUDITED  

ACTUAL 

PERFORMANCE

2019-2020

AUDITED  

ACTUAL 

PERFORMANCE

2020-2021

PLANNED 

ANNUAL 

TARGET  

2021-2022

ACTUAL 

ACHIEVEMENT

2021-2022

DEVIATION FROM 

PLANNED TARGET 

TO ACTUAL 

ACHIEVEMENT

2021-2022 REASONS FOR  DEVIATIONS

REASON FOR 

REVISIONS TO 

THE OUTPUT/

OUTPUT 

INDICATOR/

ANNUAL 

TARGET

Increased access to Occupationally Directed Programmes in the Local Government sector

Qualifications 

developed

4.1 QCTO 

Qualifications, learning 

material and RPL 

toolkits developed 

2 5 3 3 (100%) 0 (0%) Target achieved for 2021-2022 

financial year.

N/A

Accreditation 

and re-

accreditation 

of SDP’s

4.2 Percentage of 

SDPs accredited

100% 100% 100% 100% 0% Target Achieved for 2021-2022 

financial year.

N/A

Certification 

of learners

4.3 Learners 

certificated 

against Unit 

Standards/ 

Qualifications

U
n

it
 S

t
a

n
d

a
r
d 28 769 10 000 10 750 59 652  

(555%)

+48 902 

(455%)

Overachievement was due to 

addressing backlog of verifying 

and certifying of unit standards.

N/A

F
u

ll
 Q

u
a

li
fi

c
a

t
io

n 2 800 1500 10 000 3 282  

(33%)

-6 718 (67%) The uptake for submitted 

qualifications for verification 

and endorsement was low. 

The LGSETA to develop and 

implement occupational 

qualifications in the new 

financial year.

N/A

Establishment 

of assessment 

centres

4.4 Assessment 

centres established 

for quality assurance 

of occupational 

qualifications

4 3 3 3 (100%) 0 (0%) Target achieved for 2021-2022 

financial year.

N/A
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LINKING PERFORMANCE WITH BUDGETS

Table 10 below depicts expenditure against the budget for the reporting under review and the previous financial year 

in terms of the programme and its sub-programmes. 

PROGRAMME 4

QUALITY 

ASSURANCE

2020-2021 2021-2022

BUDGET

R’000

ACTUAL 

EXPENDITURE

R’000

(OVER)/ UNDER 

EXPENDITURE

R’000

BUDGET

R’000

ACTUAL 

EXPENDITURE

R’000

(OVER)/ UNDER 

EXPENDITURE

R’000

Project cost 18 464 2 520 15 944 30 800 3 966 26 834

Project 

Employee 

Costs

10 471 11 112 (641) 12 000 3 867 8 133

Project 

administrative 

costs

3 000 0 3 000 0 0 0

Total 31 935 13 632 18 303 42 800 7 833 34 967

STRATEGY TO OVERCOME AREAS OF 

UNDERPERFORMANCE

PROGRAMME 1 

• The LGSETA will address late submission of pro-

forma invoices which will address the delays for 

payments within the required timeframe.

• The LGSETA is in the process of appointing a Risk 

Management Committee chairperson to enhance 

the risk management culture.

• LGSETA will prioritise the filling of critical positions 

in the new financial year.

PROGRAMME 3 

• Strategic partnerships will further assist with top-up 

funds to facilitate unemployed beneficiaries.

• A completion strategy will be developed and 

implemented.

• The new bursary strategy will be implemented to 

improve throughput going forward.  

• Targeted approach for private sector partnerships to 

be established to enhance availability of workplaces 

and mentors.

• LGSETA to improve DG planning and implement the 

completion strategy.  

PROGRAMME 4 

• The LGSETA to develop and implement occupational 

qualifications in the new financial year.

REPORTING ON THE INSTITUTIONAL 

RESPONSE TO THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC

INTERNAL INTERVENTION IN RESPONSE TO 

THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC:

• An LGSETA COVID-19 Committee was established 

to address and manage any COVID-19-related 

matters within the organisation. The Committee 

held virtual and hybrid meetings monthly as and 

when required.

• A workplace plan was developed outlining measures 

to be taken at different stages whether around 

positive testing, disinfecting of the premises or 

communication to all staff members

• A workplace protocol when entering the premises 

was implemented in all LGSETA offices, including 

the provision of sanitisers and masks and a screening 

process.
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REVENUE COLLECTION

The levies income (discretionary grants, mandatory grants, and administration grants) is informed by the employers’ 

wage bill in the local government sector. Increases in the wage bill directly contributes to the amounts of revenue 

that is allocated to the SETA.

The increase can also be attributable to prior years revenue recovered from the employers that was not previously 

allocated to the SETA.

Interest income, the decline in investment income is due to disinvestment of funds with ABSA, in compliance with 

Treasury Regulation 31.3.3 which requires that surplus funds must be invested with the CPD.

SOURCE OF 

REVENUE

2020-2021 2021-2022

ESTIMATE 

R’000

ACTUAL 

AMOUNT 

COLLECTED

R’000

(OVER)/ UNDER 

COLLECTION

R’000

ESTIMATE 

R’000

ACTUAL 

AMOUNT 

COLLECTED

R’000

(OVER)/ UNDER 

COLLECTION

R’000

Mandatory  123 720 000.00  129 911 527.76 6 191 527.76  182 821 000.00    212 356 478.30 29 535 478.30 

Discretionary  306 207 000.00  321 872 382.76 15 665 382.76  493 460 000.00 526 775 269.00 33 413 907.26 

Admin +QCTO 64 953 000.00    68 256 018.65 3 303 018.65  104 711 000.00    111 689 337.47 6 978 337.47 

Interest and 

Penalties

0 14 572 919.00 7 609 936.63 17 744 000.00 16 432 766.31 -1 311 233.69 

Investment Income 42 677 000.00    57 728 000.00 15 051 000.00    38 618 000.00 29 444 083.28 -9 173 916.72 

Other Income 97 000.00 93 000.00 -4 000.00 161 000.00 346 000.00 185 000.00 

Total  537 654 000�00 592,099,166�00 47 816 865�80  837 515 000�00 896,983 744�00 59 627 572�62 
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PART C  

GOVERNANCE
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INTRODUCTION

Corporate governance embodies processes and systems 

by which public entities are directed, controlled and held 

to account. In addition to legislative requirements based 

on a public entity’s enabling legislation, and the Companies 

Act, corporate governance with regard to public entities 

is applied through the precepts of the PFMA and run-in 

tandem with the principles contained in the King’s Report 

on Corporate Governance.

Parliament, the Executive Authority and the Accounting 

Authority of the public entity are responsible for corporate 

governance.

PORTFOLIO COMMITTEES 

The LGSETA is a Schedule 3a public entity and reports to 

the Department of Higher Education and Training. LGSETA 

reports to Parliament through the Portfolio Committee on 

Higher Education and Training.

EXECUTIVE AUTHORITY

The Executive Authority for the LGSETA is the Minister 

of Higher Education, Science and Innovation. The Minister 

has a responsibility to approve the Sector Skills Plan (SSP), 

Strategic Plan (SP) and APP for the SETA. The Minister 

is also responsible for approving any deviations from the 

approved budget that may be warranted. 

During the year under review, the SETA complied with all 

PFMA and other compliance requirements and submitted 

the required documentation timeously to DHET and 

Parliament (where applicable):

• The four (4) SETA Quarterly Monitoring Reports 

(SQMR) for 2021/2022

• First draft SSP on 15 June 2021,

• The SP and APP on 15 September 2021 and 

• The final submission of the SSP on 2 August 2021. 

• The SP and APP were submitted on 30 November 

2021. 

• The documents were delivered to Parliament in 

February/ March 2022 and the Minister duly approved 

all of them. 

THE ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY /  BOARD 

INTRODUCTION

The LGSETA Board is governed by the LGSETA 

constitution, which is aligned to the standard constitution 

provided to the SETAs by DHET. The current serving Board 

was appointed by the Minister of Higher Education, Science 

and Innovation, effective 1 April 2020- 31 March 2025.

The LGSETA Board exercises its powers and 

responsibilities to ensure that the implementation of the 

objectives and execution of the functions of the SETA 

comply with both the Skills Development Act, NSDP 2030 

and the policies of the Executive Authority and government. 

The structure of the LGSETA Board, as outlined in the 

constitution, is as follows:

• One (1) independent- chairperson;

• Six (6) employer representatives;

• Six (6) labour representatives and 

• Two (2) representatives from community organisations

During the year under review, Members regularly 

participated in the meetings and activities of the LGSETA 

Board.

The role of the Board is as follows:

• Govern and manage the SETA in accordance with 

the PFMA, the Skills Development Act and all other 

applicable legislations;

• Provide effective leadership and ensure that the 

SETA implements outcomes of the NSDP 2030 and 

the Performance Agreement with the Minister;

• Ensure that the SETA achieves its predetermined 

objectives and other targets;

• Provide strategic direction for the SETA;

• Monitor the performance of the SETA;

• Ensure that the SETA complies with the relevant 

statutory requirements;

• Liaise at Leadership level with stakeholders and

• Manage institutional risk 

GOVERNANCE



MEMBERS OF THE BOARD

MR. RIO NOLUTSHUNGU

Organised Employer

MS. JESTA SIDELL

Organised Employer

MS. NALEDI MODIBEDI

Organised Employer

MS. PRISCILLA NTSUBA

Organised Labour

MR. NELSON MOKGOTHO

Organised Labour

MS. NOKUBONGA DINGA

Organised Labour

MR. BHABHALI NHLAPHO

Community Organisation 

MR. PHUMLANI MNTAMBO

Chairperson

MR. KEITH SWANEPOEL

Organised Labour

MR. BAREND JOHANNES KOEN

Organised Labour
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BOARD CHARTER

The purpose of this Charter is to set out the Board’s role and responsibilities, as well as the requirements for its composition 

and meeting procedures. The Board acknowledges the need for  such a charter which documents its role, responsibilities 

and procedural conduct as recommended in the King IV Report on Corporate Governance for South Africa, 2016 (“King 

IV any other applicable law or regulatory provision). Currently, the Charter is supplemented by various policies. The Board 

Charter needs to be reviewed on an annual basis.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

NAME OF MEMBER

DESIGNATION 

(IN TERMS OF 

THE PUBLIC 

ENTITY BOARD 

STRUCTURE)

DATE 

APPOINTED DATE RESIGNED QUALIFICATIONS

OTHER 

COMMITTEES OR 

TASK TEAMS  

NO. OF 

MEETINGS 

ATTENDED

Mr. Phumlani Mntambo Chairperson 01/ 04/ 

2020

Current 

Member

• BCom- Accounting 

• Postgraduate Diploma in Project Management 

• Master of Business Administration (MBA) 

• Postgraduate Diploma in Law

• Forensic Investigations and Criminal Justice

Chairperson 

of EXCO

6

Mr. Keith Swanepoel Member 01/ 04/ 

2020

Current 

Member

• Business Management Diploma

• Certificate in Interaction Management

• Certificate in Change Awareness Facilitator’s 

Programme

• Labour Relations Certificate

• Negotiation Skills Certificate

Member of 

REMCO

Member of 

ARC

6

Mr. Barend Johannes 

Koen

Member 01/ 04/ 

2020

Current 

Member

• BA Law

• LLB

• Advanced Diploma in Labour Law

• Financial Management for Non-Financial 

Managers Certificate

Chairperson 

of FINCO

Member of 

EXCO

6

Mr. Rio Nolutshungu Member 01/ 04/ 

2020

Current 

Member

• Diploma in Labour Law

• BA Degree

• Certificate in Local Democracy and Local 

Governance

• Certificate in Negotiation Skills for the World 

of Work

• Certificate in Media Relations

• Certificate in Retirement Fund Governance 

and Ethics

• Certificate in Team Effectiveness

Member of 

FINCO

Member of 

EXCO

5

Ms. Jesta Sidell Member 01/ 04/ 

2020

Current 

Member

• Advanced Diploma in Municipal Governance

• Project Management Certificate

• Executive Leadership Programme Certificate

Member of 

the EXCO

3

Ms. Naledi Modibedi Member 01/ 04/ 

2020

Current 

Member

• Masters of Business Leadership Degree

• BA Honours Degree Industrial Psychology and 

Communications

• Management Advancement Programme

Chairperson 

of REMCO

5

Ms. Priscilla Ntsuba Member 01/ 04/ 

2020

Current 

Member

• Higher Certificate in Basic Management Member of 

FINCO

6

Mr. Nelson Mokgotho Member 01/ 04/ 

2020

Current 

Member

• BA Degree

• Higher Education Diploma

• Local Government and Administration 

Certificate

• Financial Management Certificate

• Asset Management Certificate

• Local Economic Development Learnership 

Certificate

Member of 

FINCO

Member of 

EXCO

6



ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22 | LGSETA 41

NAME OF MEMBER

DESIGNATION 

(IN TERMS OF 

THE PUBLIC 

ENTITY BOARD 

STRUCTURE)

DATE 

APPOINTED DATE RESIGNED QUALIFICATIONS

OTHER 

COMMITTEES OR 

TASK TEAMS  

NO. OF 

MEETINGS 

ATTENDED

Ms. Nokubonga Dinga Member 01/ 04/ 

2020

Current 

Member

• Certificate in Organising Skills Development Member of 

REMCO

Member of 

ARC

6

Mr. Bhabhali Nhlapho Member 01/ 04/ 

2020

Current 

Member

• Degree in Social Work

• Diploma in Global Labour Studies

• Certificate in Labour Legislation

• Certificate in Productivity Management

• Certificate in Skills employability

Member of 

FINCO

6

Mr. Xola Pakati* Member 01/ 04/ 

2020

Non - 

Attendance

• Junior Primary Teacher’s Diploma

• BA Degree

• Project Management Certificate

Member of 

REMCO

2

Ms. Nomawethu Sifumba Member 01/ 04/ 

2020

Non - 

Attendance

• Community Representative -

Ms. Nonhle Mkhulisi Member 01/ 04/ 

2020

Deceased - -

Mr. Koena Ramotlou Member 01/ 04/ 

2020

Deceased -

*LGSETA Board in January 2022 recommended to the Minister of Higher Education, Science and Innovation the discharge of Mr Phakati due to non-

attendance of Board and Committee meetings. We are still awaiting for the Executive Authority to concur with the discharge and allow the LGSETA 

to commence with the process of filling the vacancy.

COMMITTEES OF THE ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY

NAME OF MEMBERS NO. OF MEMBERS

NO. OF 

MEETINGS HELD COMMITTEE

Mr. Phumlani Mntambo

Ms. Jesta Sidell

Mr. Rio Nolutshungu

Mr. Johan Koen

Mr. Nelson Mokgotho

5 10 Executive Committee (EXCO)

Ms. Naledi Modibedi

Ms. Nokubonga Dinga

Mr. Keith Swanepoel

3 3 REMCO

Ms. Priscilla Ntsuba

Mr. Nelson Mokgotho

Mr. Rio Nolutshungu

Mr. Johan Koen

Mr. Bhabhali Ka Maphikela Nhlapho

Ms. Shelley Thomas

6 6 FINCO

Mr. Tshepo Mofokeng

Mr. Mande Ndema

Ms. Gloria Mnguni

Mr. Silas Hlophe

Ms. Nokubonga Dinga

Mr. Keith Swanepoel

Mr Thokozani Tshabalala

Mr Thuto Vukea

Ms Sizo Prudence Mzizi

9 4 ARC 
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RISK MANAGEMENT

The following risk management strategies  have been 

put in place at the LGSETA:

• A dedicated Enterprise Risk Management unit 

reporting to the Head of Internal Audit and Risk that 

oversees the implementation of risk management 

strategies and risk-mitigating procedures. 

• A comprehensive risk register that reflects both 

strategic, operational and external risks, with 

stipulated actions that need to be executed by the 

risk owner.

• The Enterprise Risk Management Unit was 

responsible for ensuring that regular risk assessments 

were conducted to ensure the development of 

effective risk management strategy and  to identify 

and manage the emerging risks. 

• An effective Enterprise Risk Management policy 

and framework for risk management has been 

developed and implemented.

• The unit has made recommendations to the Board 

on levels of risk appetite and risk tolerance levels.

• The unit continues to ensure effective monitoring 

of strategic mitigation/ improvement and express 

progress on managing risks to improve entity’s 

performance.

During the year under review, the unit conducted a 

Strategic Risk and Fraud Risk Workshop with the Board 

and Management in order to determine the effectiveness 

of its risk management strategy through identifying 

strategic risks, new and emerging risks and developing 

risk mitigations/ improvement plans.

It also reviewed and updated the documents itemised 

below, each of  which was approved by the Board:

• Enterprise Risk Management Policy 

• Enterprise Risk Management Framework 

• Fraud Prevention Plan  

• Risk Appetite and Tolerance Framework and 

Statement  

• Strategic Risk Register 

The Enterprise Risk Management unit developed 

templates for reporting on the implementation and 

effectiveness of strategic and operational risks.

With the approval of the policy and framework 

documents and the new reporting templates, monitoring 

the effectiveness of risk mitigation measures should 

result in improved internal control environment.

EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROL 

A risk-based Internal Audit operational plan was 

developed and implemented that takes into considering 

the major risks identified by the Board, Management and 

Internal Audit team. This plan covered all key processes 

and operations of LGSETA.

Internal Audit reviews conducted throughout the 

financial year based on the risk assessments revealed 

various weaknesses. The findings were communicated 

to the entity for corrective actions.

INTERNAL AUDIT AND AUDIT COMMITTEES

INTERNAL AUDIT

The Internal Audit Function (IAF) conducted the 

following key Activities during the year: 

A risk-based three-year rolling and one-year Internal 

Audit Operational Plan were developed and implemented 

after considering the major risks identified by the Board, 

Management and Internal Audit team during strategic risk 

workshop. This plan covered all key business processes 

of LGSETA.

The Internal Audit one-year operational plan approved 

22 audits, and the Internal Audit Function completed all 

planned audits for this financial year.

The ARC completed the annual assessment on 

effectiveness of Internal Audit Function in line with the 

approved Audit and Risk Committee Charter using a 

questionnaire developed in line with the IPPF’s Standards. 

The results demonstrated that the ARC concurs with the 

effectiveness of Internal Audit Function.

The ARC is satisfied with the effectiveness of the internal 

audit function. The function reported all the risks and 

weaknesses identified to management and the ARC for 

the period under review.

The ARC is managing an active investigation of a 

service provider that resulted in irregular expenditure as 

disclosed in the annual financial statements. The matter 

is being assessed by an advocate from the Johannesburg 

Specialised Commercial Crimes Court in conjunction 

with The Directorate for Priority Crime Investigation.
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SUMMARY OF AUDIT WORK DONE

The following Operational Internal Audit work was 

completed during the year under review: 

• Audit of Performance Information Quarter Review

• Strategic and APPs Review

• Sector Skills Planning Review

• Coordination of organisational Performance Review

• Mandatory Grants Review

• Human Resources, Payroll and Performance 

Management Review

• Financial Statements Quarter Review

• Treatment Action Plan Quarter Review

• Supply Chain and Contract Management Review

• Fixed Assets Management Review

• ICT General Controls Review

• ICT Applications Controls Review

• ICT Security Management Review

We have reviewed the entity’s management treatment 

action plan for audit issues raised in the prior year and 

we are satisfied that the matters have been adequately 

resolved , there were no material findings raised on 

Discretionary Grants and Commitment Schedule.

However, management have embarked on a multi-year 

commitment schedule reconstruction project to clean 

up the current commitment schedule.

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE

The LGSETA Audit and Risk Committee is a formal 

statutory committee in terms of Section 51(1) (a) of 

the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA) (Act No 

1 of 1999) and National Treasury Regulation 27.1. It is a 

sub-committee of the LGSETA Accounting Authority. 

The committee operates in line with approved terms 

of reference and complies with relevant legislation, 

regulations and governance codes.

This report of the Audit and Risk Committee is presented 

to the Department of Higher Education and Training 

in compliance with the requirements of the relevant 

legislation and the revised King Code of Governance 

Principles (King IV).

ROLE OF THE COMMITTEE

The ARC is independent and is accountable to both the 

Board and the DHET. The committee’s responsibilities 

include the statutory duties prescribed by the DHET, 

PFMA and National Treasury, the applicable King lV 

recommendations and additional duties assigned by the 

Board.
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The following members served on the ARC during the period under review:

NAME OF MEMBER QUALIFICATIONS

INTERNAL 

OR 

EXTERNAL

IF INTERNAL, 

POSITION IN 

THE PUBLIC 

ENTITY

DATE 

APPOINTED

DATE RESIGNED 

/ TERMINATED

NO. OF 

MEETINGS 

ATTENDED

Thokozani Tshabalala  

(Chairperson)

• CA (SA)

• BCom

• BCom Hons

External N/ A 17 July 2020 02 Nov 2021 3

Thuto Vukea • MBA

• BCom

• Management Advancement 

Programme

• Certificate Programme 

in Business Project 

Management

External N/ A 17 July 2020 02 Nov 2021 3

Sizo Prudence Mzizi  • B.Tech: Cost and 

Management Accounting

• BCom Hons: Financial 

Management

• ACMA CGMA – CIMA

• ACGISA – CGISA

• Postgraduate Diploma: 

Corporate Law

External N/ A 17 July 2020 02 Nov 2021 2

Zanamuhla Khanyile  • Matric

• Doctorate in Business 

Administration (DBA)

• Certificate in Forensic and 

Investigative

• Auditing Postgraduate 

Certificate in Education

External N/ A 17 July 2020 07 May 2021 

(Deceased)

0

Keith Swanepoel • Business Management 

Diploma

• Certificate in Interaction 

Management

• Certificate in Change 

Awareness Facilitator’s 

Programme

• Labour Relations Certificate

• Negotiation Skills Certificate

External N/ A 17 July 2020 N/ A 4

Nokubonga Dinga • Matric

• Certificate of Organising 

Skill Development

External N/ A 17 July 2020 N/ A 5

Tshepo Mofokeng  
Chairperson

• CA (SA)

• CIA

External N/ A 19 Nov 2021 N/ A 2+1*

Mande Ndema • B.Soc Sci

• LLB

• Postgraduate Diploma 

in Marketing and Supply 

Chain Management

• Programme for 

Management Development

• Certificate in Property 

Development and 

Investment

External N/ A 09 Dec 2021 N/ A 2+1*

Silas Hlophe • Master’s in Business 

Leadership (MBL)

External N/ A 09 Dec 2021 N/ A 2+1*

Gloria Patricia Mnguni • CA (SA) External N/ A 09 Dec 2021 N/ A 2+1*

* Other meetings and workshops  

 These members served for a particular part of the financial year under review and the committee was reconstituted in the third quarter.These 

members served for a particular part of the financial year under review and the committee was reconstituted in the third quarter.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The LGSETA complies with the reporting requirements 

as prescribed by National Treasury and the DHET. It has 

submitted its strategic and annual performance plans, the 

Sector Skills Plan and the SETA quarterly financial and 

performance reports within the regulated timeframes.

The LGSETA has developed policies and procedures to 

guide financial, HR management and implementation of 

operational activities.

FRAUD AND CORRUPTION  

The entity’s Board approved the fraud prevention plan 

with notable progress around the implementation of 

plan. The entity has mechanisms in place to report fraud 

and corruption though the use of an independent service 

provider that administers the anonymous Fraud/ Whistle 

Blowing/ Tipp-off Hotline 0809 339 337, which is widely 

publicized and is included on the LGSETA website. 

Cases reported through the hotline are communicated 

to the LGSETA Board and all its sub-committees. The 

ARC assesses reported matters and refers it for further 

investigation, if and when necessary.

Complex fraud cases are referred to external service 

providers with the requisite skills and expertise that form 

part of the Internal Audit Panel of Audit Firms to ensure 

that investigations are conducted effectively. The entity 

conducts annual Fraud Awareness workshops to ensure that 

employees are kept abreast of prescripts within approved 

fraud policies and processes to be taken to identify, prevent 

and report fraud cases as and when suspected. 

MINIMISING CONFLICT OF INTEREST

The LGSETA has a “Declaration of Interest” practices 

in place at all levels of the organisation. Staff members 

are required to disclose their financial interests by 

completing the form. Board and Committee members 

are required to declare any conflict of interest at the 

beginning of their term of service and also at each 

governance meeting they attend.

CODE OF CONDUCT 

The code of conduct provides an ethical framework 

and  guideline as to what is expected from LGSETA 

employees, the Board and committees in performing 

their duties and conducting themselves on all matter 

related to the LGSETA.

The LGSETA members shall commit to conducting 

themselves in accordance with the highest standards 

of integrity and ethics and in compliance with the 

Skills Development Act and other legislation related to 

objectivity, independence, and conflict of interest.

During the current financial period there has been overall 

compliance with the LGSETA Code of Conduct by its 

employees. Upon appointment, all employees agree 

to comply with the Code of Conduct as one of their 

conditions of employment.

The Code of Conduct is for the Board is included in 

the LGSETA Constitution that guise the conduct and 

performance of members of the Board and committees.

Where there is serious negligence of duties, or any 

misconduct, the LGSETA CEO or Chairperson may 

request that the LGSETA members be excused from 

organisation or committee.

HEALTH SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL 

ISSUES

The LGSETA has an Occupational Health and Safety 

Committee that has been constituted in terms of the 

Occupational Health and Safety Act and with its approved 

Terms of Reference. The Committee is constituted of 

representatives from the various divisions at Head Office 

and Provincial offices. As a result of the Covid-19 pandemic, 

a Covid Task Team was established in accordance with 

the Disaster Management Act. This task team has been 

responsible for formulating appropriate responses to the 

guidelines and requirements from the Department of 

Health.  In addressing and curbing the spread of COVID-19 

virus within the organisation, personal protective clothing 

and sanitisers were purchased for employees.

The LGSETA Board and Management have been 

committed to providing support to the Corporate 

Services Unit  to ensure that a safe and healthy working 

environment is provided to staff so that they can perform 

effectively.
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ROLE OF THE COMPANY SECRETARY TO THE 

ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY

The role of the Secretary to the Accounting Authority 

entails the following:

• Determining the annual calendar for Accounting 

Authority meetings in consultation with the 

Accounting Authority Chairperson and the CEO 

prior to the calendar year in question;

• Preparation and distribution of Accounting Authority 

packs for meetings at least five (5) working days 

prior to the date of the meeting;

• Recording minutes of the Accounting Authority and 

its committees;

• Maintenance of statutory records;

• Conduct the annual performance evaluation process 

for the Accounting Authority and its committees;

• Facilitating the induction of new Accounting 

Authority members and developing mechanisms 

for providing continuous education and training 

for members in order to improve and maintain the 

effectiveness of the Accounting Authority.

• Providing guidance to Accounting Authority 

members in terms of their fiduciary responsibilities 

and duties;

• Providing guidance to Accounting Authority 

members on matters of governance; and

• Advice on matters of legislative compliance and 

reporting

• Managing conflicts of interest.
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We are pleased to present our report for the financial 

year ended 31 March 2022.

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITY

The Audit and Risk Committee reports that it has 

complied with its responsibilities arising from Section 

51 (1) (a)(ii) of the PFMA and Treasury Regulation 

27.1. The Audit Committee also reports that it has 

adopted appropriate formal terms of reference as its 

Audit Committee Charter, has regulated its affairs in 

compliance with this Charter and has discharged all 

its responsibilities as contained therein, except for the 

fact that we have not reviewed changes in accounting 

policies and practices.

THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROL

The PFMA requires the Accounting Authority to ensure 

that the entity has and maintains effective, efficient 

and transparent systems of financial, risk management 

and internal control, whilst it is the Committee’s role to 

review the effectiveness of internal controls and oversee 

risk management.  Reviews on the effectiveness of the 

internal controls were conducted and they covered 

financial, operational, compliance and risk assessment.

Through the Committee’s analysis of the audit reports 

and engagement with the entity officials, the Committee 

reports that the system of internal controls for the 

period under review required improvement to reduce 

the risk to an acceptable level, even though the control 

environment was adequate and effective.

THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL AUDIT

A risk-based Internal Audit operational plan was 

developed and implemented taking into considering the 

major risks identified by the Board, Management and 

Internal Audit team. This plan covered all key processes 

and operations of LGSETA. Internal Audit reviews 

conducted throughout the financial year were based 

on risk assessments conducted, which revealed various 

weaknesses These findings were all communicated to 

the entity for corrective actions.

The following Operational Internal Audit work was 

completed during the year under review: 

• Audit of Performance Information Quarter Review

• Strategic and Annual Performance Plan Review

• Sector Skills Planning Review

• Coordination of organisational Performance Review

• Mandatory Grants Review

• Human Resources, Payroll and Performance 

Management Review

• Financial Statements Quarter Review

• Treatment Action Plan Quarter Review

• Supply Chain and Contract Management Review

• Fixed Assets Management Review

• ICT General Controls Review

• ICT Applications Controls Review

• ICT Security Management Review

The following Special/ Consulting Internal Audit work 

was completed during the year under review: 

• Discretionary Grants Committee Review

The following were found to be areas of concern:

• Supply Chain and Contract Management

• ICT General Controls Review

• ICT Applications Controls Review

• ICT Security Management Review

EVALUATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Committee successfully discharged its Risk 

Management oversight responsibility and reviewed the 

adequacy, effectiveness and efficiency of Enterprise Risk 

AUDIT AND RISK 

COMMITTEE REPORT  

MR TSHEPO MOFOKENG

Chairperson of the Audit  and Risk Committee
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Management, Strategic and Operational Risk Registers 

and Mitigation Plans as developed by management.

EVALUATION OF ANTI-CORRUPTION AND 

FRAUD MATTERS 

The committee reviewed and recommended to the board 

for approval the Fraud Prevention Strategy. The Anti-

Corruption and Fraud hotline reports were reviewed, and 

management was directed to resolve the outstanding 

enquiries and investigations. The implementation of the 

fraud risk mitigation plan was monitored through the 

quarterly reports submitted at the ARC meetings.

EVALUATION OF THE QUALITY OF IN-YEAR 

MANAGEMENT AND MONTHLY/QUARTERLY 

REPORT

The public entity has been reporting monthly and 

quarterly to Treasury as is required by the PFMA. The 

Committee has reviewed the quarterly and annual 

financial statements and its disclosure notes to be 

included in the annual report, with the Auditor-General. 

Weaknesses identified during this reviews were reported 

to management for corrective actions. We have also 

reviewed the Auditor-General’s management report 

from last year and management’s response thereto and 

has satisfied ourselves that the management action plan 

for the current year addressed the root causes of the 

issues that were identified.

EVALUATION OF FINANCE FUNCTION

The Committee considered the structural capacity, skill, 

and competency of the Finance Function and during the 

year there was vacancy of senior financial officials .The 

executive management noted this concern and post year 

end  remedied the situation. 

EVALUATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Committee reviewed the Annual Financial 

Statements of the department and is satisfied that they 

comply with the applicable Accounting Standards and 

that the accounting policies used are appropriate. The 

Annual Financial Statements were reviewed with the 

following focus:

• Significant financial reporting judgements and 

estimates 

• Clarity and completeness of disclosure and whether 

disclosures made have been set properly in context;

• Changes in the Accounting Policies and Practices;

• Significant adjustments resulting from the Audit;

• Compliance with accounting standards and legal 

requirements;

• Explanation for the accounting treatment adopted;

• Reasons for year-on-year fluctuations; 

• Asset valuations and revaluations; and

• Re-assessment of the useful life of the assets.

EVALUATION OF THE AGSA AUDIT PROCESS 

AND REPORTS

The Committee reviewed the entity’s management 

treatment action plan for audit issues raised in the prior 

year and we are satisfied with the progress made in 

resolving the outstanding issues.

Further, in consultation with the Accounting Authority, 

the committee noted to the terms of the Auditor 

-General South Africa’s engagement letter, audit strategy 

and audit fees in respect of the 2021/22 financial year.

The issue raised by the AGSA on its interim and final 

reports to management were tabled, discussed and 

considered by the Committee.

The Committee confirms that it has been actively 

involved throughout the audit process and is thoroughly 

appraised of the issues giving rise to the audit opinion.

The Committee has also had in committee meetings 

with the AGSA to consider any matters for its attention.

CONCLUSION

The ARC concurs and accepts the conclusions of the AG 

on the annual financial statements and is of the opinion 

that the audited annual financial statements be accepted 

and read together with the report of the AGSA.

Mr Tshepo Mofokeng

Chairperson of the Audit  and Risk Committee

31 July 2022
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B-BBEE COMPLIANCE PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

The following table has been completed in terms of compliance to the BBBEE requirements of the BBBEE Act of 

2013 and as determined by the Department of Trade, Industry and Competition.  

CRITERIA

RESPONSE

YES /  NO DISCUSSION

Determining qualification criteria for the issuing 

of licences, concessions or other authorisations in 

respect of economic activity in terms of any law .

No  Not applicable to the SETA

Developing and implementing a preferential 

procurement policy.

Yes The LGSETA has a Supply Chain Management Policy in 

place for procurement processes.

Determining qualification criteria for the sale of 

state-owned enterprises.

No  Not applicable to the SETA

Developing criteria for entering into partnerships 

with the private sector.

No Not applicable to the SETA

Determining criteria for the awarding of 

incentives, grants and investment schemes 

in support of Broad Based Black Economic 

Empowerment.

No Not applicable to the SETA
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PART D  

HUMAN RESOURCE 

MANAGEMENT
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INTRODUCTION 

HR OVERVIEW 2021-2022

The Human Resources of the LGSETA were seriously 

affected in many aspects by the COVID-19 pandemic. The 

way in which employees worked was persistently under 

review and the only constant was change. Employees 

had to adapt  to lockdown regulations of the Disaster 

Management Act.

The new Executive Management also brought along 

new developments for the Human Resources (HR) 

of the organisation. In line with these changes, work 

had to be shared horizontally and vertically resulting 

in certain employees performing executive level work 

without previous experience at that level. Growth had 

to take place overnight to ensure management met the 

requirements of the Board.

At the same time, the number of resignations of senior 

management increased, especially in the Finance and 

ICT departments, and this had a domino effect on the 

organisation’s performance and coping mechanisms of 

employees so as to deliver a service to the organisation 

as a whole.

Change affects culture positively and negatively and 

the role of the Human Resources Department together 

with the Chief Executive Officer continued to instil and 

inspire a culture of learning, performance and care for 

employees.  

HR PRIORITIES

The recruitment of the right people with the right 

work ethic contributed to meeting the mandate of the 

LGSETA. 

The LGSETA is currently starting an organisational 

design project.  A key aspect of the project is a workforce 

study. The outcome of the study will indicate the type of 

positions, number of positions and structure that would 

serve the LGSETA best in meeting its mandate and 

supporting the achievement of targets.  Re-visiting the 

Internship Strategy and the Transfer of Skills within the 

organisation will form an important part of the workforce 

strategy.

The Employee Performance Management Policy 

requires simplification to ensure alignment with other 

related policies and strategy. The management of 

performance should  dovetail with the targets of the 

organisation. Employees should be made fully aware of 

their performance targets and it should be measured on 

a monthly basis. The scores associated with the level of 

performance must also be defined to embrace a fair and 

just performance system.

The Human Resources Department has given 

considerable attention within budget constraints to the 

psychological and physical well-being of employees. 

The use of the wellness system increased to 60% from 

a mere 10%.  Loss of family members due to COVID-19, 

the emotional impact of a hybrid work model, depression 

as a direct result of COVID-19-related issues including 

financial advice each contributed to the increase in the 

usage of the wellness system, according to the report by 

the external organisation who is responsible for wellness.

The Human Resources Department has made 

considerable progress in the area of policy development 

and all new or reviewed policies submitted to the Board 

have been approved.   Previously, policy development 

was not managed optimally, and the progress made for 

the year under review is motivating, and an achievement 

for the Human Resource Department.  In addition, 

meeting required legislated requirements namely the 

Employment Equity Plan and the Workplace Skills 

Plan also contributed to a sense of achievement in 

Human Resources, noting that the Human Resources 

Department is under-capacitated.

The Human Resources team assisted employees to 

operate in a hybrid working environment. 

Once the COVID-19 regulations were relaxed, further 

support was provided to employees to adjust back to a 

“normal” working environment within a short period of 

time.

A clean track record at the CCMA in terms of dismissals 

for misconduct is indicative of the Human Resource 

Department’s implementation of discipline in line with 

the Labour Relations Act of 1995, as amended, and 

the Code of Good Practice.  Implementation of on-line 

induction, recruitment and hearings reduced costs and 

allowed for Human Resources management processes 

to continue even in difficult circumstances.

CHALLENGES

Promoting a learning organisation and a high-

performance culture requires commitment from all 

employees and management so as to  facilitate a new 

way of doing things.  This includes allowing employees 

to have a “voice” whilst keeping them accountable 
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for their actions and performance.  As part of this 

process, the role of managers is  vital  when it comes 

to supporting performance management.  There is 

a need to develop an integrated Human Resources 

Management system concomitant with Strategic Human 

Resource Development and Strategic Human Resource 

Management, as aligned to the strategy of the LGSETA.  

Going forward, there is greater impetus to work 

collaboratively and promote business partnering with 

other departments, but this has not happened due to 

capacity constraints within the HR Department.  

FUTURE PLAN

In line with the Strategic HRM and Strategic HRD 

approach, it is vital to ensure that the HR Department is 

capacitated to perform its functions.  There is a need to 

ensure that data analytics is available to inform decision 

making and assist LGSETA managers to act and develop 

new plans of action to ensure targets are met.

As part of promoting a learning organisation and high-

performance culture, organisational culture of the 

LGSETA requires interventions to create an enabling 

environment including a knowledge management 

system; mentoring and coaching including a buddy 

system; recognition of performance; recognition of team 

players; training and development of employees; honest, 

clear open-line communication and the promotion of 

ethical behaviour.

Human Resources is about service delivery on all levels. 

Increasing the capacity of the team and increasing 

its intelligence by exposing them to Global Best HR 

Practices are vital towards achieving this goal.
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PERSONNEL RELATED EXPENDITURE

Personnel Cost by Programme

PROGRAMME/ ACTIVITY/ 

OBJECTIVE

TOTAL 

EXPENDITURE 

FOR THE ENTITY 

(R’000)

PERSONNEL 

EXPENDITURE 

(R’000)

PERSONNEL 

EXPENDITURE 

AS A % OF TOTAL  

EXPENDITURE

NO. OF  

EMPLOYEES

AVERAGE 

PERSONNEL COST 

PER EMPLOYEE 

(R’000)

Board 2.265 2.159 95%   

CEO’s Office 9.678 9.339 97% 9 1.044

Finance 2.540 12.392 488% 11 1.127

Corporate Services 2.482 11.359 458% 14 811

Operations 50.446 46.796 93% 70 669

Strategy and Planning 1.111 10.913 982% 13 839

TOTAL 68.522 93.018 136% 117 795

Personnel cost by salary band

LEVEL

PERSONNEL 

EXPENDITURE  

(R’000)

% OF PERSONNEL EXP. 

TO TOTAL PERSONNEL 

COST  

(R’000) NO. OF EMPLOYEES

AVERAGE PERSONNEL 

COST PER EMPLOYEE 

(R’000)

Top Management 13.573 15% 7 1.939

Senior Management 24.565 26% 17 1.445

Professional qualified 34.886 38% 35 997

Skilled 16.108 17% 47 343

Semi-skilled 3.603 4% 11 353

Unskilled 0 0% 0 0

TOTAL 93.018 100% 117  

Performance Rewards

During the year under review no performance-related remuneration was paid to employees in respect of the 2021-

2022 performance cycle. 

Training Costs 

PROGRAMME/ ACTIVITY/ 

OBJECTIVE

PERSONNEL 

EXPENDITURE 

(R’000)

TRAINING 

EXPENDITURE

(R’000)

TRAINING 

EXPENDITURE AS A 

% OF PERSONNEL 

COST.

NO. OF EMPLOYEES 

TRAINED

AVG. TRAINING  

COST PER 

EMPLOYEE

CEO 9.339 85 1% 7 12

Finance 8.691 13 0% 6 2

Corporate Services 10.585 174 2% 9 19

Operations 45.193 324 1% 61 5

Strategy and Planning 11.400 93 1% 11 8

TOTAL 85.208 668 1% 94 7

HUMAN RESOURCE OVERSIGHT STATISTICS 

For the financial year under review, as at 31 March 2022, the Human Resources Oversight Statistics were as follows:
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Employment and vacancies

PROGRAMME/ ACTIVITY/ 

OBJECTIVE

2020-2021

NO. OF EMPLOYEES

 2021-2022

APPROVED POSTS

2021-2022

NO. OF EMPLOYEES

2021-2022

VACANCIES % OF VACANCIES

Top Management 6 6 6 0 0%

Senior Management 21 25 18 7 28%

Professional qualified 35 42 35 7 17%

Skilled 46 47 47 0 0%

Semi-skilled 11 12 11 1 8%

Unskilled 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 119 132 117 15 11

Employment changes

SALARY BAND

EMPLOYMENT AT 

BEGINNING OF PERIOD APPOINTMENTS TERMINATIONS 

EMPLOYMENT AT END 

OF THE PERIOD

Top Management 6 0 0 7

Senior Management 21 1 4 17

Professional qualified 35 3 3 35

Skilled 46 1 0 47

Semi-skilled 11 0 0 11

Unskilled 0 0 0 0

Total 119 5 7 117

Labour Relations: Misconduct and disciplinary action

NATURE OF  

DISCIPLINARY ACTION NUMBER 

Verbal Warning 1

Written Warning 0

Final Written warning 1

Suspension 4

Dismissal 0

Total 6

Reasons for staff leaving 

REASON NUMBER

% OF TOTAL NO. OF 

STAFF LEAVING

Death 0 0%

Resignation 6 86%

Dismissal 0 0%

Retirement 1 14%

Ill health 0 0%

Expiry of contract 4 0%

Other 0 0%

Total 11 100%
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Equity Target and Employment Equity Status 

LEVELS

MALE

AFRICAN COLOURED INDIAN WHITE

CURRENT TARGET CURRENT TARGET CURRENT TARGET CURRENT TARGET

Top Management 3 3 1 1 0 0 0 0

Senior Management 9 10 0 0 0 1 0 0

Professional qualified 19 20 2 3 1 1 0 1

Skilled 9 9  0 0 0 0 0 1

Semi-skilled  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Unskilled 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 40 42 3 4 1 2 0 2

LEVELS

FEMALE

AFRICAN COLOURED INDIAN WHITE

CURRENT TARGET CURRENT TARGET CURRENT TARGET CURRENT TARGET

Top Management 2 2 0 0 0 0 0 0

Senior Management 6 9 1 1 0 2 2 2

Professional qualified 19 20 4 4 0 0 0 0

Skilled 23 21 2 2 1 1 1 1

Semi-skilled 11 12 1 1 0 0 0 0

Unskilled 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 61 64 8 8 1 3 3 3

LEVELS

STAFF WITH DISABILITIES

MALE FEMALE

CURRENT TARGET CURRENT TARGET

Top Management 0 0 0 0

Senior Management 0 1 0 0

Professional qualified 0 0 0 0

Skilled 0 0 0 0

Semi-skilled 0 0 0 0

Unskilled 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 0 1 0 0
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PART E  

FINANCIAL 

INFORMATION
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STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY

The Accounting Authority is responsible for the 

preparation of the Local Government SETA’s annual 

financial statements and the judgements made in this 

information.

The Accounting Authority is responsible for establishing, 

and implementing a systems of internal control designed 

to provide reasonable assurance to the integrity and 

reliability of the annual financial statements.

The external auditors are engaged to express an 

Independent opinion on the financial statements of 

Local Government SETA.

The annual financial statements set out on page 63, 

which have been prepared on the going concern 

basis, were approved by the Board members on  

31 May 2022 and were signed on its behalf by:

Phumlani Mntambo Ineeleng Molete

LGSETA: Chairperson LGSETA: Chief Executive Officer
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO PARLIAMENT ON THE LOCAL 

GOVERNMENT SECTOR EDUCATION AUTHORITY

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS

OPINION

1 . I have audited the financial statements of the Local 

Government Sector Education Authority set out on 

pages 63 to 101, which comprise the statement of 

financial position as at 31 March 2022, statement 

of financial performance, statement of changes in 

net assets, cash flow statement and statement of 

comparison of budget and actual amounts for the 

year then ended, as well as notes to the financial 

statements, including a summary of significant 

accounting policies.

2. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, 

in all material respects, the financial position of the 

Local Government Sector Education and Training 

Authority as at 31 March 2022, and its financial 

performance and cash flows for the year then ended 

in accordance with Generally Recognised Accounting 

Practice (GRAP) and the requirements of the Public 

Finance Management Act I of 1999 (PFMA) and the 

Skills Development Act 97 of 1998 (SDA).

BASIS FOR OPINION

3. I conducted my audit in accordance with the 

International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). My 

responsibilities under those standards are further 

described in the auditor-general’s responsibilities for 

the audit of the financial statements section of my 

report.

4. I am independent of the public entity in accordance 

with the International Ethics Standards Board 

for Accountants’ International code of ethics for 

professional accountants (including International 

Independence Standards) (IESBA code) as well 

as other ethical requirements that are relevant to 

my audit in South Africa. I have fulfilled my other 

ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 

requirements and the IESBA code.

5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 

opinion.

EMPHASIS OF MATTER

6. I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is 

not modified in respect of this matter.

RESTATEMENT OF CORRESPONDING FIGURES

7.  As disclosed in note 27 to the financial statements, 

the corresponding figures for 31 March 2021 were 

restated as a result of an error in the financial 

statements of the public entity at, and for the year 

ended, 31 March 2022.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE ACCOUNTING 

AUTHORITY FOR THE FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS

8. The accounting authority is responsible for the 

preparation and fair presentation of the financial 

statements in accordance with GRAP and the 

requirements of the PFMA and the SDA, and for 

such internal control as the accounting authority 

determines is necessary to enable the preparation 

of financial statements that are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

9. In preparing the financial statements, the accounting 

authority is responsible for assessing the public 

entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, 

disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going 

concern and using the going concern basis of 

accounting unless the appropriate governance 

structure either intends to liquidate the public entity 

or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative 

but to do so.
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AUDITOR-GENERAL’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR 

THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10. My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance 

about whether the financial statements as a whole 

are free from material misstatement, whether due 

to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 

that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a 

high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that 

an audit conducted in accordance with the ISAS 

will always detect a material misstatement when 

it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 

error and are considered material if, individually or 

in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 

influence the economic decisions of users taken on 

the basis of these financial statements.

11. A further description of my responsibilities for the 

audit of the financial statements is included in the 

annexure to this auditor’s report.

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE ANNUAL 

PERFORMANCE REPORT

INTRODUCTION AND SCOPE

12. In accordance with the Public Audit Act 25 of 2004 

(PAA) and the general notice issued in terms thereof, 

I have a responsibility to report on the usefulness and 

reliability of the reported performance information 

against predetermined objectives for selected 

programmes presented in the annual performance 

report. I performed procedures to identify material 

findings but not to gather evidence to express 

assurance.

13. My procedures address the usefulness and reliability 

of the reported performance information, which 

must be based on the public entity’s approved 

performance planning documents. I have not 

evaluated the completeness and appropriateness of 

the performance indicators included in the planning 

documents. My procedures do not examine whether 

the actions taken by the public entity enabled 

service delivery. My procedures do not extend to 

any disclosures or assertions relating to the extent 

of achievements in the current year or planned 

performance strategies and information in respect 

of future periods that may be included as part of the 

reported performance information. Accordingly, my 

findings do not extend to these matters.

14. I evaluated the usefulness and reliability of the 

reported performance information in accordance 

with the criteria developed from the performance 

management and reporting framework, as defined 

in the general notice, for the following selected 

programme presented in the public entity’s annual 

performance report for the year ended 31 March 

2022:

Programme

Pages in the annual 

performance report

Programme 3 — learning 

programmes and projects
27-33

15. I performed procedures to determine whether 

the reported performance information was 

properly presented and whether performance was 

consistent with the approved performance planning 

documents. I performed further procedures to 

determine whether the indicators and related targets 

were measurable and relevant, and assessed the 

reliability of the reported performance information 

to determine whether it was valid, accurate and 

complete.

16. The material findings on the usefulness and reliability 

of the performance information of the selected 

programme are as follows:

 Programme 3 — learning programmes and 

projects

 Indicator 3.1 - percentage of discretionary grant 

budget allocated at developing skills levels

17. The achievement of this indicator and its planned 

target of 100% were unrelated to the planned 

indicator and its predetermined measurement 

processes. As a result, I was unable to audit the 

reliability of the reported achievement.

VARIOUS INDICATORS

18. The explanations for variances for the performance 

indicators listed below were not supported by 

reliable evidence.
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Indicator reported Nature Target Achievement

3.4 Number of University students requiring Work Integrated Learning 

to complete their qualification placed in workplaces

Completed 200 52

3.5 Number of unemployed learners in an internship Entered 500 309

3.5 Number of unemployed learners in an internship Completed 500 55

3.6 Number of unemployed learners in a skills Completed 700 847

3.7 Number of unemployed learners enrolled for learnerships 

programmes

Completed 700 888

3.8 Number of unemployed learners in a candidacy programme Completed 50 6

3.9 Number of workers in learnership programmes Entered 1 150 478

3.9 Number of workers in learnership programmes Completed 800 607

3.10 Number of workers awarded bursaries Completed 350 149

3.11 Number of workers in skills programmes Completed 1 000 627

3.12 Number of workers in AET programmes Entered 1 000

3.12 Number of workers in AET programmes Completed 500 48

3.13 Number of learners in an artisan development programme Completed 300 0

3.14 Number of unemployed learners awarded bursaries Continuing 125 153

3.14 Number of unemployed learners awarded bursaries Completed 350 34

3.15 Number of learners in RPL/ARPL Completed 80 54

3.21 Number of managers receiving training on curriculum related 

studies per annum

CET 

managers

20 25

3.23 Number of CET College Lecturers awarded Skills Development 

Programmes

 - 20 25

3.24 Number of CET learners accessing AET programmes Entered 700 866

3.24 Number of CET learners accessing AET programmes Completed 600 32

3.26 Number of people to be trained on entrepreneurial skills  - 40 50

3.14 Number of unemployed learners awarded bursaries New entries 500 547

3.15 Number of learners in RPL/ARPL Entered 100 106

3.21 Number of managers receiving training on curriculum related 

studies per annum

TVET 

managers

22 24

OTHER MATTERS

19. I draw attention to the matters below.

ACHIEVEMENT OF PLANNED TARGETS

20. Refer to the annual performance report on pages 20 

to 35 for information on the achievement of planned 

targets for the year and management’s explanations 

provided for the under/over achievement of targets. 

This information should be considered in the context 

of the material findings on the usefulness and 

reliability of the reported performance information 

in paragraphs 17 to 18 of this report.

ADJUSTMENT OF MATERIAL MISSTATEMENTS

21 I identified material misstatements in the annual 

performance report submitted for auditing. These 

material misstatements were in the reported 

performance information of programme 3learning 

programmes and projects. As management 

subsequently corrected only some of the 

misstatements, I raised material findings on the 

usefulness and reliability of the reported performance 

information. Those that were not corrected are 

reported above.
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REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF COMPLIANCE 

WITH LEGISLATION

INTRODUCTION AND SCOPE

22. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice 

issued in terms thereof, have a responsibility to 

report material findings on the public entity’s 

compliance with specific matters in key legislation. I 

performed procedures to identify findings but not to 

gather evidence to express assurance.

23. The material findings on compliance with specific 

matters in key legislation are as follows:

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24. The annual financial statements submitted for audit 

were not prepared in accordance with the prescribed 

financial reporting framework as required by section 

55(1) (b) of the PFMA.

 Material misstatements of contingencies, the cash 

flow statement and irregular expenditure identified 

by the auditors in the submitted financial statements 

were corrected and the supporting records were 

provided subsequently, resulting in the financial 

statements receiving an unqualified audit opinion.

EXPENDITURE MANAGEMENT

25. Effective and appropriate steps were not taken to 

prevent irregular expenditure amounting to R41 

639 000 as disclosed in note 32 to the financial 

statements, as required by section 51 (1 )(b)(ii) of 

the PFMA. The majority of the irregular expenditure 

was caused by noncompliance with section 2 (1) 

of the SETA Grant Regulations as administration 

expenditure exceeded the 10.5% threshold.

26. Prepayments were made before goods and 

services were received, in contravention of treasury 

regulation 31.1.2(c).

PROCUREMENT AND CONTRACT 

MANAGEMENT

27. Some goods and services with a transaction value 

above R500 000 were procured without inviting 

competitive bids as required by treasury regulation 

16A6.1 and TR 16A6.4 and paragraph 3.4.1 of Practice 

Note 8 of 2007/2008.

OTHER INFORMATION

28. The accounting authority is responsible for the 

other information. The other information comprises 

the information included in the annual report. The 

other information does not include the financial 

statements, the auditor’s report and those selected 

programme presented in the annual performance 

report that have been specifically reported in this 

auditor’s report.

29. My opinion on the financial statements and findings 

on the reported performance information and 

compliance with legislation do not cover the other 

information and I do not express an audit opinion or 

any form of assurance conclusion on it.

30. In connection with my audit, my responsibility is 

to read the other information and, in doing so, 

consider whether the other information is materially 

inconsistent with the financial statements and 

the selected programme presented in the annual 

performance report, or my knowledge obtained 

in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially 

misstated.

31. I did not receive the other information prior to the 

date of this auditor’s report. When I do receive and 

read this information, and if I conclude that there 

is a material misstatement therein, I am required 

to communicate the matter to those charged with 

governance and request that the other information 

be corrected. If the other information is not 

corrected, I may have to retract this auditor’s report 

and re-issue an amended report as appropriate. 

However, if it is corrected, this will not be necessary.

INTERNAL CONTROL DEFICIENCIES

32. I considered internal control relevant to my audit 

of the financial statements, reported performance 

information and compliance with applicable 

legislation; however, my objective was not to express 

any form of assurance on it. The matters reported 

below are limited to the significant internal control 

deficiencies that resulted in the findings on the 

performance report and the findings on compliance 

with legislation included in this report.

33. Management did not implement controls for the 

daily and monthly processing and reconciling of 

transactions to ensure that all transactions and 

accounts disclosed in the financial statements 

were accurate and complete and that explanations 
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for deviations on actual performance against 

predetermined objectives were appropriately 

disclosed in the annual performance report.

34. The financial statements submitted for auditing 

were not prepared in accordance with the prescribed 

financial reporting framework, as required by section 

55(1)(b) of the PFMA. Material misstatements were 

identified in multiple classes of transactions, account 

balances, the cash flow statement as well as related 

disclosure notes. These misstatements were only 

corrected by management through adjustments 

made during the audit process.

OTHER REPORTS

35. I draw attention to the following engagements 

conducted by various parties which had, or could 

have, an impact on the matters reported in the public 

entity’s financial statements, reported performance 

information, compliance with applicable legislation 

and other related matters. These reports did not 

form part of my opinion on the financial statements 

or my findings on the reported performance 

information or compliance with legislation.

36. The public entity is currently undertaking criminal 

and civil actions against a service provider relating to 

a discretionary grant disbursement that took place 

in the 2017-18 financial year. At year-end, the matter 

resided with the Directorate for Priority Crime 

Investigation (the Hawks).

Pretoria

31 July 2022
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Annexure -  Auditor-general’s responsibility for the audit

1. As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, 

I exercise professional judgement and maintain 

professional scepticism throughout my audit of the 

financial statements and the procedures performed 

on reported performance information for selected 

programme and on the public entity’s compliance 

with respect to the selected subject matters.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  In addition to my responsibility for the audit of the 

financial statements as described in this auditor’s 

report, I also:

• identify and assess the risks of material 

misstatement of the financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error; design and 

perform audit procedures responsive to those 

risks; and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient 

and appropriate to provide a basis for my 

opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 

than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 

involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 

misrepresentations or the override of internal 

control

• obtain an understanding of internal control 

relevant to the audit in order to design 

audit procedures that are appropriate in the 

circumstances, but not for the purpose of 

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 

the public entity’s internal control

• evaluate the appropriateness of accounting 

policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures 

made by the accounting authority

• conclude on the appropriateness of the 

accounting authority’s use of the going concern 

basis of accounting in the preparation of the 

financial statements. I also conclude, based 

on the audit evidence obtained, whether a 

material uncertainty exists relating to events 

or conditions that may cast significant doubt 

on the ability of the Local Government 

Sector Education Authority to continue as a 

going concern. If I conclude that a material 

uncertainty exists, I am required to draw 

attention in my auditor’s report to the related 

disclosures in the financial statements about 

the material uncertainty or, if such disclosures 

are inadequate, to modify my opinion on the 

financial statements. My conclusions are based 

on the information available to me at the date 

of this auditor’s report. However, future events 

or conditions may cause a public entity to cease 

operating as a going concern

• evaluate the overall presentation, structure and 

content of the financial statements, including 

the disclosures, and determine whether the 

financial statements represent the underlying 

transactions and events in a manner that 

achieves fair presentation

COMMUNICATION WITH THOSE CHARGED 

WITH GOVERNANCE

3. I communicate with the accounting authority 

regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 

including any significant deficiencies in internal 

control that I identify during my audit.

4. also provide the accounting authority with a 

statement that I have complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence, and to 

communicate with them all relationships and other 

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on 

my independence and, where applicable, actions 

taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

NOTES

2022

R’000

2021

Restated*

R’000

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories 6 140 97

Receivables from exchange transactions 7 7,328 6,823

Receivables from non-exchange transactions 8 2,055 2,500

Cash and cash equivalents 9 1,873,802 1,478,927

1,883,325 1,488,347

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment 3 3,178 2,220

Intangible assets 4 323 647

3,501 2,867

Total Assets 1,886,826 1,491,214

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Operating lease liability 5 1,794 188

Trade and other payables from exchange transactions 11 7,238 3,179

Trade and other payables from non-exchange transactions 12 118,684 99,550

Provisions 10 10,343 11,485

138,059 114,402

Total Liabilities 138,059 114,402

Net Assets 1,748,767 1,376,812

RESERVES

Discretionary Grant reserve 1,745,265 1,373,945

Administrative reserve 3,502 2,867

Total Net Assets 1,748,767 1,376,812

*See note 27

as at 31 March 2022
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NOTES

2022

R’000

2021

Restated*

R’000

REVENUE

REVENUE FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Other income 14 346 93

Interest received - investment 15 29,444 57,728

Total revenue from exchange transactions 29,790 57,821

REVENUE FROM NON-EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

TRANSFER REVENUE

Skills Development Levy (SDL) Revenue 17 850,761 519,706

SDL penalties and interest income 18 16,433 14,572

Total revenue from non-exchange transactions 867,194 534,278

Total revenue 13 896,984 592,099

EXPENDITURE

Employee related costs 19 (93,018) (89,454)

Depreciation and amortisation 20 (1,806) (1,656)

Employer grant and project expenses 16 (372,995) (296,230)

General Expenses 21 (57,071) (35,517)

Total expenditure (524,890) (422,857)

Surplus for the year 372,094 169,242

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

*See note 27

for the year ended 31 March 2022
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Discretionary 

Grant Reserve

R’000

Administrative 

replacement 

reserve

R’000

Total reserves

R’000

Accumulated 

surplus

R’000

Total net 

assets

R’000

Balance at 01 April 2020 1,203,977 3,594 1,207,571 - 1,207,571

Changes in net assets

Surplus for the year - - - 169,242 169,242

Allocation of unappropriated 

surplus

151,471 17,770 169,241 (169,242) (1)

Transfer to discetionary 

reserves: Excess Funds

18,498 (18,498) - - -

Total changes 169,969 (728) 169,241 - 169,241

Restated* Balance at 01 April 

2021

1,373,945 2,867 1,376,812 - 1,376,812

Changes in net assets

Surplus for the year - - - 372,094 372,094

Allocation of unappropriated 

surplus

333,025 39,070 372,094 (372,094) -

Transfer from mandatory grants (139) - - - -

Transfer to discretionary grants: 

excess funds

38,434 (38,434) (138) - (138)

Total changes 371,320 636 371,956 - 371,956

Balance at 31 March 2022 1,745,265 3,502 1,748,767 - 1,748,767

Note(s)

*See note 27

for the year ended 31 March 2022
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NOTES

2022

R’000

2021

Restated*

R’000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

RECEIPTS

Other income/(outflow) from operating activities 346 93

SDL Revenue, interest and penalties received 867,639 533,846

Interest received 28,070 57,728

896,055 591,667

PAYMENTS

Compensation of employees (94,352) (86,403)

Grants and project payments (353,841) (296,110)

Payments to suppliers and other general expenses (50,512) (37,165)

(498,705) (419,678)

Net cash flows from operating activities 23 397,350 171,989

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 3 (2,475) (930)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 394,875 171,059

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,478,927 1,307,869

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 9 1,873,802 1,478,928

The accounting policies on pages 68 to 76 and the notes on pages 77 to 101 form an integral part of the annual 

financial statements.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT 

*See note 27

for the year ended 31 March 2022
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STATEMENT OF COMPARISON  

OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS

Approved 

budget

R’000

Adjustments

R’000

Final Budget  

R’000

Actual 

amounts

on comparable 

basis

R’000

Difference 

between final 

budget and 

actual

R’000 Reference

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

REVENUE

REVENUE FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Other income 161 - 161 346 185

Interest received - investment 68,274 (29,656) 38,618 29,444 (9,174) 33

Total revenue from exchange transactions 68,435 (29,656) 38,779 29,790 (8,989)

REVENUE FROM NON-EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

TRANSFER REVENUE

Penalties and Interest 7,078 10,666 17,744 16,433 (1,311) 33

Administration Levy Income(10.5%) 87,260 17,451 104,711 111,669 6,958 33

Mandatory Grant Levy Income (20%) 166,201 16,620 182,821 212,317 29,496 33

Discretionary Grant Levy Income (49.5%) 411,216 82,244 493,460 526,775 33,315 33

Total revenue from non- exchange transactions 671,755 126,981 798,736 867,194 68,458

Total revenue 740,190 97,325 837,515 896,984 59,469

EXPENDITURE

Employee Related Costs (75,490) 6,968 (68,522) (91,499) (22,977) 33

Internal Audit Fees (1,819) (1,078) (2,897) (1,191) 1,706 33

Staff Training (2,731) - (2,731) (668) 2,063 33

QCTO (4,980) 1,478 (3,502) (3,502) - 33

Travel and Accommodation (9,907) - (9,907) (9,259) 648 33

External Audit Fees (5,292) - (5,292) (4,509) 783

Lease Rentals (14,000) - (14,000) (9,949) 4,051 33

Marketing and Advertising (4,200) - (4,200) (1,486) 2,714 33

Conferences and Workshops (3,000) - (3,000) (2,400) 600 33

Repair and Maintenance (1,500) - (1,500) (732) 768

Consultancy and Service (2,140) - (2,140) (3,423) (1,283) 33

Providers

Legal Fees (2,646) (2,354) (5,000) (3,685) 1,315 33

Printing (4,612) 1,112 (3,500) (1,066) 2,434 33

Telephone and Internet (4,000) - (4,000) (4,466) (466) 33

Governance Costs (3,062) - (3,062) (2,328) 734

Other Expenses (including asset purchases) (12,500) 6,078 (6,422) (3,142) 3,280 33

Mandatory grant expenses (166,201) (16,620) (182,821) (216,194) (33,373) 33

Total discretionary grants expenditure (418,294) (92,909) (511,203) (156,800) 354,403 33

General Expenses (3,816) - (3,816) (8,591) (4,775) 33

Total expenditure (740,190) (97,325) (837,515) (524,890) 312,625

Surplus before taxation - - - 372,094 372,094

Actual Amount on Comparable Basis as Presented 

in the Budget and Actual Comparative Statement - - - 372,094 372,094

for the year ended 31 March 2022
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

1.  PRESENTATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised 

Accounting Practice (GRAP), issued by the Accounting Standards Board in accordance with Section 91(1) of the 

Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999).

These annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with 

historical cost convention as the basis of measurement, unless specified otherwise.

Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses were not offset, except where offsetting is either required or permitted by 

a Standard of GRAP.

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied in the preparation of these 

annual financial statements, are disclosed below.

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period.

1.1  PRESENTATION CURRENCY

These financial statements are presented in South African Rands, which is the functional currency of the entity. The 

disclosed amounts are rounded-off to the nearest R1000.

1.2  GOING CONCERN ASSUMPTION

These annual financial statements have been prepared based on the expectation that the entity will continue to 

operate as a going concern for at least the next 12 months. This basis presumes that funds will be available to finance 

future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, contigent liabilities and commitments 

will occur in the ordinary course of business.

1.3  SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTS AND SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In preparing the annual financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect 

the amounts represented in the annual financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and 

the application of judgement is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from 

these estimates which may be material to the annual financial statements. Significant judgements include:

IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The calculation in respect of the impairment of property, plant and equipment is based on an assessment of the 

extent to which the recoverable amount of the asset has declined below the carrying amount. During the asset 

counts, the condition of assets is considered, and where the assets are impaired, this is taken into account.

USEFUL LIVES OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AT COST

The useful lIves of assets are based on management’s best estimates. Management considers the use and condition 

of the assets determine the optimum useful-life expectation, where appropriate.

PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS

Management’s judgement is required when recognising and measuring provisions, as well as when measuring 

contingent liabilities and contingent assets. Leave provision is estimated using the available leave days as at 31 March 
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2022 using the daily rate calculation as per guidelines in the Basic Conditions of Employment Act (BCEA). The 

bonus provision is based on management’s calculation using the historical information based on the performance 

assessments in the prior year in line with the LGSETA’s performance management policy and probability of the 

performance bonus payout.

1.4  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets (including infrastructure assets) that are held for use 

in the production or supply of goods or services, rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to 

be used during more than one period.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:

• it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the entity; 

and

• the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring 

the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the 

management. Trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost.

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses where 

applicable. The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:

ITEM DEPRECIATION METHOD AVERAGE USEFUL LIFE

Office furniture and fittings Straight-line 5 years

Office equipment Straight-line 5 years

Computer equipment Straight-line 3 years

Leasehold improvements Straight-line over lease term

The entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the entity’s expectations about the 

residual value and the useful life of an asset have changed since the preceding reporting date. If any such indication 

exists and it is considered to be material, the entity revises the expected useful life and/or residual value accordingly. 

The change is accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate.

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit. Impairment losses are recognised in the 

statement of financial performance.

Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further 

economic benefits or service potential expected from the use of the asset.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or 

deficit when the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecogntion of an item of property, plant 

and equipment is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount 

of the item.

LGSETA separately discloses expenditure to repair and maintain property, plant and equipment in the notes to the 

financial statements (Note 21).

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
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1.5  INTANGIBLE ASSETS

LGSETA’s intangible assets are mainly made up of the software licenses which are acquired for the period exceeding 

one financial period.

An intangible asset is recognised when:

• it is probable that the expected future economic benefits or service potential that are attributable to the asset 

will flow to the entity; and

• the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal project) is recognised as an expense when it is 

incurred.

Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses where applicable. 

The amortisation period is in line with the software license period.

Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight-line basis, to their residual values as 

follows:

ITEM DEPRECIATION METHOD AVERAGE USEFUL LIFE

Computer software license Straight-line Over license period

Intangible assets are derecognised:

• on disposal; or at the end of license period; or

• when no future economic benefits or service potential are expected from its use or disposal.

1.6  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or a 

residual interest of another entity.

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to 

discharge an obligation.

Derecognition is the removal of a previously recognised financial asset or financial liability from an entity’s statement 

of financial position.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability 

(or group of financial assets or financial liabilities) and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the 

relevant period. All financial instruments for LGSETA are short-term within 12 months and therefore, the effective 

interest rate is equivalent to the current interest being charged and therefore the discounting method is not used in 

determining the interest rate.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable willing 

parties in an arm’s length transaction.

A financial asset is:

• cash;

• a residual interest of another entity; or

• a contractual right to:

- receive cash or another financial asset from another entity; or

- exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially 

favourable to the entity.

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the 

holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the original 

or modified terms of a debt instrument.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
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A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation to:

• deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or

• exchange financial assets or financial liabilities under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the entity.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 

changes in market interest rates.

Liquidity risk is the risk encountered by an entity in the event of difficulty in meeting obligations associated with 

financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 

changes in market prices.

A financial asset is past due when a counterparty has failed to make a payment when contractually due.

CLASSIFICATION

The entity has the following types of financial assets (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the statement 

of financial position or in the notes thereto:

CLASS CATEGORY

Cash and cash equivalents Financial asset measured at fair value

Trade and other receivables: exchange Financial asset measured at fair value 

Trade and other receivables: non-exchange Financial asset measured at fair value

The entity has the following types of financial liabilities (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the statement 

of financial position or in the notes thereto:

CLASS CATEGORY

Trade and other payables: exchange Financial liability measured at amortised cost 

Trade and other payables: non-exchange Financial liability measured at amortised cost

DERECOGNITION 

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

The entity removes a financial liability (or part of a financial liability) from its statement of financial position when it is 

extinguished - i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled, expires or waived.

1.7  TAX

No provision has been made for taxation, as the LGSETA is exempt from tax in terms of section 10 of the Income 

Tax Act.

1.8  LEASES

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. 

A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to 

ownership.

OPERATING LEASES - LESSEE

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight line basis over the lease term. The difference 

between the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease 

asset or liability.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)



ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22 | LGSETA 73

1.9  INVENTORIES

Inventories are initially measured at cost. LGSETA’s inventories are made up of all the consumables unused at year 

end. Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

1.10  RESERVES

Equity is sub-classified in the statement of financial position between the following funds and reserves:

• Administration reserve

• Employer grant reserve

• Discretionary grant reserve

This sub-classification is made on the restrictions placed on the distribution of monies received in accordance with 

the regulations issued in terms of the Skills Development Act (SDA).

Municipality and municipal entities’ skills development levy payments are set aside in terms of the Skills Development 

Act and the regulations issued in terms of the Act, as follows:

PURPOSE OF TOTAL SDL PAYMENTS FROM EMPLOYER

% Allocation 

2021/22

%Allocation 

2020/21

Administration costs if the SETA 10.50 % 10.50 %

Mandatory grants 20.00 % 20.00 %

Discretionary grants and projects 49.50 % 49.50 %

80.00 % 80.00 %

Interest and penalties received from SARS are utilised for discretionary grants. Other income received is utilised in 

accordance with the original source of the income.

The net surplus/(deficit) is allocated to the administration reserve, the mandatory grant reserve and the discretionary 

grant reserve based on the above. The amount retained in the administration reserve equates to the net book value 

of the property, plant and equipment and intangible assets. Excess cash reserves are transferred to the discretionary 

reserve at the end of the financial year.

Surplus funds in the employer grant reserve are transferred to the discretionary reserve at the end of the financial 

year. An amount is retained in the employer grant reserve to pay for projects that are committed at year end as per 

the commitments register.

1.11  EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

SHORT-TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable within 12 months after the service is rendered, such as paid 

vacation leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits such as medical care), are recognised in the period 

in which the service is rendered and are not discounted.

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that 

increase their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs.

The expected cost of surplus sharing and bonus payments is recognised as an expense when there is a legal or 

constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past performance.

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLANS

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged as an expense as they fall due.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
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1.12  PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENCIES

Provisions are recognised when:

• the entity has a present obligation as a result of a past event;

• it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to 

settle the obligation; and

• a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the present 

obligation at the reporting date.

Provision from exempt entities arise from the entities which have total annual gross salary below R500 000. DHET 

issued guidance to all SETAs indicating that these funds must continue to be accounted for as liabilities for a period 

of 5 years unless the related companies claim back these funds during this 5 year period.

A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised.

A contingent liability is possible obligation that arises from the past events, and whose existence will be confirmed 

only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of 

the entity.

A contingent asset is possible asset that arises from the past events, and whose existence will be confirmed only by 

the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity.

1.13  COMMITMENTS

Items are classified as commitments when an entity has committed itself to future transactions that will normally 

result in the outflow of cash.

Commitments for discretionary grants includes all contracts which are active at year end, and funding agreements 

relating to the project allocations for 2021/22 financial period which have been accepted by the service providers.

Commitments for which disclosures is necessary to achieve a fair presentation are disclosed in a note 25 to the 

financial statements.

1.14  REVENUE FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

An exchange transaction is one in which the entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and 

directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of goods, services or use of assets) to the other party 

in exchange.

MEASUREMENT

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.

INVESTMENT INCOME

Interest is recognised, in surplus or deficit , using the interest rate quoted by the Investment banks.

1.15  REVENUE FROM NON-EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Revenue comprises gross inflows of economic benefits or service potential received and receivable by an entity, 

which represents an increase in net assets.
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MEASUREMENT

Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the increase in net assets recognised by 

the entity.

LEVY INCOME

In terms of section 3(1) and 3(4) of the Skills Development Levies Act, 1999 ( Act No.9 of 1999), registered member 

companies of the LGSETA pay a skills development levy (SDL) of 1% of the total payroll cost to the South African 

Revenue Service (SARS). 80% of SDL are paid over to the LGSETA (net of the 20% contribution to the National 

Skills Fund).

SDL income is recognised as and when it is received from the Department of Higher Education and Training.

LGSETA refunds amounts to employers in the form of grants, based on information received from SARS. Where 

SARS retrospectively amends the information on SDL collected, it may result in grants that have been paid to certain 

employers that are in excess of the amount the SETA is permitted to have granted to employers. A receivable relating 

to the overpayment to the employer in earlier periods is raised at the amount of such grant over payment, net of bad 

and provision for irrecoverable amounts.

Revenue is adjusted for inter SETA transfers due to employers changing SETAs. Such adjustments are separately 

disclosed as inter SETA transfers. The amount of the inter SETA adjustment is calculated according to the Standard 

Operating Procedures issued by the Department of Higher Education & Training (DHET) ON 15 May 2007.

When a new employer is transferred to the LGSETA, the SDL transferred by the former SETA are recognised as 

revenue and allocated to the respective category to maintain its original identity. The SDL transfer is measured at the 

fair value of the consideration received.

SDL income is recognized when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to LGSETA and these benefits 

can be measured reliably. This occurs when the DHET either makes an allocation or payment, whichever comes first, 

to LGSETA, as required by section 8 of the Skills Development Levies Act, 1999 ( Act No.9 of 1999).

PENALTIES AND INTEREST

Interest and penalties on SDL is recognised on the earlier of the time the DHET makes the allocation or payment of 

the funds in the bank account of LGSETA.

1.16  COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Where necessary, comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to changes in presentation in the current 

year.

1.17  FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE

Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care 

been exercised.

All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial 

performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the 

nature of the expense, and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial 

performance.

1.18  IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE

Irregular expenditure is as defined in section 1 of the PFMA is expenditure other than unauthorised expenditure, 

incurred in contravention of or that is not in accordance with a requirement of any applicable legislation, including

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
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a) this Act; or

b) the State Tender Board Act, 1968 ( Act No 86 of 1968), or any regulations made in terms of the Act; or

c) any provincial legislation providing for procurement procedures in that provincial government.

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year which was condoned 

before year end and /or before finalisation of financial statements must also reported appropriately in the irregular 

expenditure register. In such an instance, no further action is also required with the exception of updating the note 

to the financial statements.

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and which was condonement 

is being awaited at year must be recorded in the irregular expenditure register. No further action is also required with 

the exception of updating the note to the financial statements.

Where irregular expenditure was incurred in the previous financial year and is only condoned in the following financial 

year, the register and the disclosure note to the financial statements must be updated with the amount condoned.

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and which was not condoned 

by the National Treasury or the relevant authority must be recorded appropriately in the regular expenditure register. 

If liability for the irregular expenditure can be attributed to a person, a debt account must be created if such a person 

is liable in law. Immediate steps must thereafter be taken to recover the amount from the person concerned. If 

recovery is not possible, the accounting officer or accounting authority may write off the amount as debt impairment 

and disclose such in the relevant note to the financial statements. The irregular expenditure register must also be 

updated accordingly. If the irregular expenditure has not been condoned and no person is liable in law, the expenditure 

related thereto must remain against the relevant programme/ expenditure item, be disclosed as such in the note to 

the financial statement and updated accordingly in the irregular expenditure register.

1.19  BUDGET INFORMATION

LGSETA are typically subject to budgetary limits in the form of appropriations or budget authorization (or equivalent), 

which is given effect through authorising legislation, appropriation or similar.

General purpose financial reporting by LGSETA shall provide information on whether resources were obtained and 

used in accordance with the legally adopted budget.

The approved budget is prepared on a accrual basis and presented by economic classification linked to performance 

outcome objectives.

The approved budget covers the fiscal period from 01/04/2021 to 31/03/2022.

The financial statements and the budget are on the same basis of accounting therefore a comparison with the 

budgeted amounts for the reporting period have been included in the statement of comparison of budget and actual 

amounts.

Significant variances are considered to be those that exceed R1 million in value and have a difference of 10% margin 

between budgeted and actual amounts. All material differences are explained in the noted to the annual financial 

statements.

1.20  RELATED PARTIES

LGSETA operates in an economic sector currently dominated by entities directly or indirectly owned by the South 

African Government. As a consequence of the constitutional independence of the three spheres of government in 

South Africa, only entities within the national sphere of government are considered to be related parties.

Management are those persons responsible for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the LGSETA, 

including those charged with governance of the LGSETA in accordance with legislation, in instance where they are 

required to perform such functions.
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Close members of the family of a person are considered to be those members who may be expected to influence, or 

be influenced by that management in their dealings with the LGSETA.

1.21  EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE

Events after reporting date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the reporting 

date and the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified:

• those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date (adjusting events after the reporting 

date); and

• those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date (non-adjusting events after the 

reporting date).

The LGSETA will adjust the amount recognised in the financial statements to reflect adjusting events after the 

reporting date once the event occurred.

The LGSETA will disclose the nature of the event and an estimate of its financial effect or a statement that such 

estimate cannot be made in respect of all material non-adjusting events, where non-disclosure could influence the 

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

1.22  GRANTS AND PROJECT EXPENDITURE

1.22.1  GRANTS AND PROJECT EXPENDITURE

Municipalities and municipal entities may recover its total SDL payment by complying with the grant criteria in 

accordance with the Skills Development Regulations issued in terms of the Skills Development Act 1999 ( Act No 9 

of 1999)

1.22.2  MANDATORY GRANTS EXPENDITURE

The grant payable and the related expenditure are recognised when  the employer has submitted an application 

for a grant in the prescribed form (Work Skills Plan) within the agreed upon cut-off period and the application has 

been approved as the payment then becomes probable. The grant is equivalent to 20% of the total SDL paid by the 

employer during the corresponding financial period for the skills grant.

1.22.3  DISCRETIONARY GRANT EXPENDITURE

LGSETA may out of any surplus monies determine and allocate discretionary grant to employer, education and 

training providers and workers of the employers who have submitted an application for a discretionary grant in the 

prescribed form within the agreed upon cut-off period. The grant payable and the related expenditure are recognised 

when the application has been approved to the extent that the conditions of the grant have been met and the 

services have been rendered.
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2.  NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

2.1  STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS EFFECTIVE AND ADOPTED IN THE CURRENT YEAR

In the current year, the entity has adopted the following standards and interpretations that are effective for the 

current financial year and that are relevant to its operations:

STANDARD/ INTERPRETATION:

EFFECTIVE DATE: YEARS 

BEGINNING ON OR AFTER EXPECTED IMPACT:

Directive 14: The application of 

Standards of GRAP by Public Entities 

that apply IFRS® Standards

01 April 2021

 

2.2  STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED, BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The entity has not applied the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and are mandatory 

for the entity’s accounting periods beginning on or after 01 April 2022 or later periods:

STANDARD/ INTERPRETATION:

EFFECTIVE DATE: YEARS 

BEGINNING ON OR AFTER EXPECTED IMPACT:

GRAP 104 (amended): Financial 

Instruments

01 April 2025 Unlikely there will be a material impact

iGRAP 21: The Effect of Past 

Decisions on Materiality

01 April 2023 Unlikely there will be a material impact

GRAP 2020: Improvements to the 

standards of GRAP 2020

01 April 2023 Unlikely there will be a material impact

GRAP 1 (amended): Presentation of 

Financial Statements

01 April 2023 Unlikely there will be a material impact
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3.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

2022 2021

Cost /

Valuation

R’000

Accumulated

depreciation

and

accumulated

impairment

R’000

Carrying 

value

R’000

Cost /

Valuation

R’000

Accumulated

depreciation

and

accumulated

impairment

R’000

Carrying 

value

R’000

Office Furniture and fixtures 4,805 (4,049) 756 4,421 (3,597) 824

Office equipment 2,558 (1,582) 976 1,708 (1,247) 461

Computer equipment 7,964 (6,518) 1,446 6,815 (5,880) 935

Total 15,327 (12,149) 3,178 12,944 (10,724) 2,220

RECONCILIATION OF PROPERTY, 

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - 2022

Opening 

balance

R’000

Additions

R’000

Disposals

R’000

Depreciation

R’000

Total

R’000

Office Furniture and fixtures 824 385 - (453) 756

Office equipment 461 850 - (335) 976

Computer equipment 935 1,240 (35) (694) 1,446

2,220 2,475 (35) (1,482) 3,178

RECONCILIATION OF PROPERTY, 

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - 2021

Opening 

balance

R’000

Additions

R’000

Disposals

R’000

Depreciation

R’000

Total

R’000

Office Furniture and fixtures 1,260 10 (85) (361) 824

Office equipment 623 27 (59) (130) 461

Computer equipment 533 898 (288) (208) 935

2,416 935 (432) (699) 2,220

4.  INTANGIBLE ASSETS

2022 2021

Cost /

Valuation

R’000

Accumulated

amortisation 

and

accumulated

impairment

R’000

Carrying 

value

R’000

Cost /

Valuation

R’000

Accumulated

amortisation 

and

accumulated

impairment

R’000

Carrying 

value

R’000

Computer software licences 3,886 (3,563) 323 3,886 (3,239) 647

RECONCILIATION OF INTANGIBLE ASSETS - 2022

Opening 

balance

R’000

Amortisation

R’000

Total

R’000

Computer software licences 647 (324) 323

RECONCILIATION OF INTANGIBLE ASSETS - 2021

Opening 

balance

R’000

Amortisation

R’000

Total

R’000

Computer software licences 1,179 (532) 647
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5.  OPERATING LEASE LIABILITY

2022

R’000

2021

R’000

Current liabilities (1,794) (188)

During 2020/21 financial year, LGSETA entered into new longer lease agreements ranging at 3-5 years, as they 

previously limited to 2 years. The leases were only for a portion of 2020/21 and for the full financial year of 2021/22, 

which resulted in the significant increase in the operating lease liability for the 2021/22 financial year..

The operating lease liability is the difference between the actual lease instalments as per the lease agreement, and 

the equalised lease instalments as per GRAP 13: Leases.

Refer to note 27 for the prior period error related to the operating lease liability.

OPERATING LEASES COMMITMENT

Minimum lease payments due: - -

Within 1  Year 10,966 2,475

Between 2 to 5 Years 35,445 9,387

46,411 11,862

6.  INVENTORIES

Stationery and other consumables 140 97

7.  RECEIVABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Deposits - Lease Agreement 3,277 3,151

Prepaid expenses 630 1,615

Other debtors (10) -

Interest Receivable 3,431 2,057

7,328 6,823

Prepaid expenses mainly relate to the licensing costs payable at the beginning of the contract, inline with the 

agreement signed between LGSETA and the suppliers. The interest receivable relates to the interest accrual on 

the call accounts held with ABSA at year end. There has been a reduction of the interest in the receivable in the 

2020/21 financial period as the fixed deposit investments matured in December 2020.

8.  RECEIVABLES FROM NON-EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Mandatory grant receivables/recoveries 2,055 2,500

Bad debt provision (360) (360)

Discretionary grant receivables 360 360

2,055 2,500

RECONCILIATION OF PROVISION FOR IMPAIRMENT OF RECEIVABLES FROM NON-EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Opening balance (360) (360)

The impairment of receivables from non-exchange transactions relate to the deceased learners which were 

claimed for in 2015/16 financial period by one service provider. The debt is considered to be irrecoverable and will 

be considered for write-off.

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)



ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22 | LGSETA 81

9.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2022

R’000

2021

R’000

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Petty cash on hand 12 12

Bank balances 1,708,047 1,318,442

Short-term deposits and call accounts 165,743 160,473

1,873,802 1,478,927

As required in terms of the LGSETA investment policy, bank accounts held are limited to the financial institutions 

that are approved by National Treasury.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash on hand, Bank balances and short term fixed deposits on call with 

banks.

10.  PROVISIONS

RECONCILIATION OF 

PROVISIONS - 2022

Opening Balance

R’000

Additions

R’000

Utilised during the 

year

R’000

Total

R’000

Levies from exempt entities 820 159 - 979

Performance bonus 2,010 - - 2,010

Leave pay 8,655 6,400 (7,701) 7,354

11,485 6,559 (7,701) 10,343

RECONCILIATION OF 

PROVISIONS - 2021

Opening Balance

R’000

Additions

R’000

Utilised during the 

year

R’000

Total

R’000

Levies from exempt entities 701 203 (84) 820

Performance bonus 2,021 - (11) 2,010

Leave pay 5,593 6,413 (3,351) 8,655

8,315 6,616 (3,446) 11,485

11.  TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES FROM EXCHANGE 

TRANSACTIONS

2022

R’000

2021

R’000

Trade payables 3,210 2,563

Accrued expense: Administrative expenses 3,465 20

Employee cost payables 563 596

7,238 3,179

12.    TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES FROM NON-EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Discretionary Employer Creditors 15,014 5,939

Discretionary Project Creditors 29,964 25,101

Inter-SETA payables - non-exchange 239 239

Mandatory Grants payables 73,467 68,271

118,684 99,550
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13.    REVENUE

2022

R’000

2021

R’000

Other income 346 93

Interest received - investment 29,444 57,728

Skills Development Levy (SDL) Revenue 850,761 519,706

SDL penalties and interest income 16,433 14,572

896,984 592,099

THE AMOUNT INCLUDED IN REVENUE ARISING FROM EXCHANGES OF GOODS OR SERVICES 

ARE AS FOLLOWS:

Other income - (rollup) 346 93

Interest received - investment 29,444 57,728

29,790 57,821

THE AMOUNT INCLUDED IN REVENUE ARISING FROM NON-EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS IS AS 

FOLLOWS:

TAXATION REVENUE

TRANSFER REVENUE

Skills Development Levy (SDL) Revenue 850,761 519,706

SDL penalties and interest income 16,433 14,572

867,194 534,278

14.  OTHER INCOME

Other income 346 93

15.  INVESTMENT REVENUE

INTEREST REVENUE

Finance income for the period 29,444 57,728

16.  EMPLOYER GRANT AND PROJECT EXPENSES

MANDATORY GRANT EXPENDITURE

Mandatory grant to employers 216,194 129,882

DISCRETIONARY GRANT EXPENSES

Pivotal skills - project expenses 141,129 147,639

Pivotal skills project related expenses - 6,358

Non-pivotal skills - project expenses 11,706 10,651

Non-pivotal adminstrative expenses 3,966 1,700

156,801 166,348

372,995 296,230
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17. SKILLS DEVELOPMENT LEVY (SDL) REVENUE

2022

R’000

2021

R’000

Adminstration - SDL income 111,669 68,240

Mandatory grant - SDL income 212,317 129,882

Discretionary grants - SDL income 526,775 321,584

850,761 519,706

18.  SDL PENALTIES AND INTEREST RECEIVED

Skills development levy interest income 7,273 7,610

Skills development levy penalty income 9,160 6,962

16,433 14,572

19.  EMPLOYEE RELATED COSTS

Basic 76,486 72,516

Non-pensionable allowances 1,519 -

Bonus 377 390

Medical aid - company contributions 3,552 3,270

UIF 257 225

WCA 176 179

SDL 823 533

Leave pay provision charge (476) 3,432

Defined contribution plans 9,928 8,861

Long-service awards 245 60

Union Fees 78 -

Office relocation &  establishment costs 53 -

Performance bonus - (12)

93,018 89,454

Employee related costs includes Project Employee Costs of R 25 968, attributable to administrative expenses 

related to Discretionary Grants.

20.  DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION

Property, plant and equipment 1,482 1,124

Intangible assets 324 532

1,806 1,656
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21.  GENERAL EXPENSES

2022

R’000

2021

R’000

Accommodation 3,171 1,169

Advertising 407 373

Audit Committee remuneration 251 210

Auditors remuneration 4,509 3,236

Bank charges 84 101

Board fees and expenses 2,077 1,777

Conferences, venue hire and catering 2,400 276

Consultant fees 3,423 1,383

Consumables 714 285

Information Technology expenses 2,006 1,723

Insurance 221 213

Internal audit fees 1,191 866

Legal expenses 3,685 802

License costs 690 965

Loss on disposal of assets 35 3

Marketing and communications 1,079 294

Operating lease costs 9,949 6,919

Other expenses - 262

Parking 1,161 668

Postage and courier 28 59

Printing and stationery 1,066 1,210

QCTO costs 3,502 4,600

Repairs and Maintenance 732 380

Staff Training and development costs 668 623

Staff recruitment costs 36 338

Staff study fees 522 21

Staff welfare 1,160 125

Telephone and fax 2,947 3,901

Travel costs 6,088 1,592

Water, electricity, rates and taxes 3,269 1,143

57,071 35,517

22.  AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Fees 4,509 3,236

23.  CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Surplus 372,094 169,242

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation 1,806 1,656

Gain on sale of assets and liabilities 35 3

Movements in operating lease liability 1,606 (3)

Movements in provisions (1,142) 3,171

Changes in working capital:

Inventories (43) 7

Receivables from exchange transactions (505) 14,908

Other receivables from non-exchange transactions 445 (432)

Trade and other payables from exchange transactions 4,059 (2,068)

Trade and other payables form non-exchange 18,995 (14,495)

397,350 171,989
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24.  COMMITMENTS  (CONTINUED)

PIVOTAL AND NON- PIVOTAL PROJECTS SPLIT

The discretionary Grant regulations require that at least 80% of the discretionary budget be allocated to Pivotal 

Projects.

In 2021/2022, LGSETA has met this requirement as Pivotal Projects exceed 80% threshold

PIVOTAL

INTERVENTION

2022

R’000

Adult Education Training (AET) 20,964

Apprenticeship 36,196

Bursaries 52,786

Candidacy Programme 58,659

Internships 16,415

Learnerships 130,630

Recognition of Prior Learning (RPL) 14,520

Skills Programme 25,259

Work Intergrated Learning (WIL) 74,546

429,975

NON-PIVOTAL

INTERVENTION

Education and Training Quality Assurance 548

Skills Programme 5,577

Work Intergrated Learning 123

6,248

Total Pivotal Projects 429,974

Total Non- Pivotal Projects 6,248

Grand Total 436,222

DISCRETIONARY GRANT AWARDS NOT YET CONTRACTED

APPROVED PROJECTS AND NOT YET CONTRACTED

INTERVENTION

2022

R’000

2021

R’000

Adult Education Training (AET) 8,419 12,420

Apprenticeships - 11,440

Bursaries 16,180 15,455

Candidacy Programme 4,500 -

Internships 13,478 12,098

Learnerships 52,104 64,000

Recognition of Prior Learning (RPL) 39,800 930

Skills Programme 16,826 20,455

Work Intergrated Learning 8,562 10,207

159,869 147,005
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25.  CONTINGENCIES 

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

LGSETA CASES

Type of Case Estimate Status25.1  PARTY/PARTIES

In October 2019, BUSA won a court case against 

DHET where department’s decision to decrease the 

mandatory grant levies and grants percentage was 

decreased from 50% to 20% in terms of section 

4(4) of the SETA grant regulations was set aside. 

The court did not decide on the mandatory levy or 

grant percentage to be applied from the court 

date onwards.The effect of the ruling is that

the Minister would have to decide on the percentage 

for mandatory grants in consultation with the sector. 

The Minister has not yet made the decision in regard 

to the mandatory grant percentage. This is disclosed 

as a liability as the intention of the litigants, BUSA, 

was to increase the mandatory grant percentage from 

20%. The timing and amount of this contingent liability 

is uncertain and no reasonable estimate can be made 

at this point.

Civil Case Not yet 

determined

In consultation 

process with 

DHET and SETA 

CEO’s

4 Executive Managers (Chief Financial Officer, Chief 

Operations Officer, Executive Manager: Corporate, 

Head: Internal Audit and Risk)

Labour 

case: Unfair 

precautionary 

suspension

1 000 Case referred 

CCMA for 

Arbitration

Local Government Sector Education and Training 

Authority vs The Training Professional CC Civil Case 584  In Arbitration

25.2  SURPLUS FUNDS

In terms of section 53 (3) of the PFMA, public entities listed in Schedule 3A and 3C to the PFMA may not retain 

cash surpluses that were realized in the previous financial year without obtaining the prior written approval of 

National Treasury. During September 2020, National Treasury Issued Instruction No.12 of 2020/21 which gave 

more detail to the surplus definition. According to this instruction, the calculation of surplus funds should be in 

terms of Paragraph 3.2 of the National Treasury Instruction.

CALCULATION OF SURPLUS

2022

R’000

2021

R’000

Cash and cash Equivalents at year end 1,873,802 1,478,930

Add Receivables 9,383 9,323

Less Current Liabilities (138,059) (112,861)

1,745,126 1,375,392
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26.  RELATED PARTIES

RELATIONSHIPS

Controlling Entity Department Of Higher Education and Training

Entities with a representative serving on LGSETA’s 

Accounting Authority

Members of the Accounting Authority

Independent Board Members Mr. Phumulani Mntambo (Board Chairperson)

Mr. Bhabhali Nhlapo

Ms. Nomawethu Sifumba

Ms.Shelly Thomas

Independent Municipal and Allied Trade Union 

(IMATU)

Mr. Keith Swanepoel

Mr.Barend Johannes Koen

South African Local Government Association 

(SALGA)

Mr. Xola Pakati

Mr. Rio Nolutshungu

Ms.Jesta Sidell

Ms. Naledi Modibedi -Rakate

South African Municipal Worker’s Union (SAMWU) Ms. Priscilla Ntsuba 

Mr. Nelson Mokgotho 

Ms. Nokubonga Dinga

Other SETAs Parent entity is the Department of Higher Education and 

Training, therefore all SETAs are under the same control.

Quality Council for Trades and Occupations (QCTO) Entity under common control

Public Investment Corporation Limited (PIC) State Owned Company (SOC)

Executive Manangement Key Management Personal

TVET Colleges Entities under common control

Universities Entities under common control

RELATED PARTY BALANCES 2022

R’000

2021

R’000ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

PIC - Rental expense 337 4,068

QCTO - GCTO Admin Levy 3,502 4,600

ETDP SETA - Skills Development Levy - 532

Tshwane University of Technology 43 -

University of Johannesburg - -

University of Pretoria 50 -

Richfield Graduate Institute of Technology 27 -

Cranefield College 61 -

OTHER INCOME

ETDP SETA Mandatory Grant - Other Income 162 93

PAYABLES FROM NON-EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Wholesale & Retail SETA (W&RSETA) - 22

Energy SETA (EWSETA) - 3

Health and Welfare SETA (HWSETA) - 214
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26.  RELATED PARTIES (CONTINUED)

RELATED PARTY

Transaction

Type

Expenditure 

2022

R’000

Commitment 

2022

R’000

Expenditure 

2021

R’000

Commitment 

2021

R’000

COGTA Discretionary Grants 71 366 - -

SAMWU Discretionary Grants 2,200 - 69 1

IMATU Discretionary Grants 386 580 3,599 5,166

SALGA Discretionary Grants 1,400 2,101 217 1,950

SALGA Mandatory Grants 553 - 424 -

4,610 3,047 4,309 7,117

The above transactions occurred under the terms that were no less favourable than those available in similar arm’s 

length dealings.

RELATED PARTIES

RELATED PARTIES - ENTITIES UNDER COMMON CONTROL

In terms of GRAP 20 the following entities (TVET Colleges and Universities) are under common control with LGSETA 

and therefore regarded as related parties. As part of implementing the skills development for the local government 

sector. LGSETA has entered into contracts with the Universities and TVET Colleges to fund learners’ Bursaries, 

Learnerships, Skills Programmes and Work Integrated Learning (WIL) in line with the discretionary grants policy

The transactions with these entities are in the normal course of LGSETA’s business and were entered into at arm’s 

length. LGSETA only included projects where there is a funding agreement between LGSETA and the entity under 

common, and therefore excluded balances where LGSETA has entered into a bursary agreement with the learners. 

As at 31 March 2022, the commitment balances relating to entities under common control were as follows:

TVET COLLEGES AND UNIVERSITIES

2022

R’000

2021

R’000

Umfolozi TVET College - 12,360

Ikhala TVET 1,984 7,247

Ingwe TVET 516 1,242

King Hintsa TVET College 441 677

King Sabata Dalindyebo TVET College 4,742 9,743

Majuba TVET College 5,351 7,980

Mnabithi TVET College 3,022 3,578

Mopani South East TVET College 3,599 6,529

Northern Cape Urban TVET College 19 13,131

Northern Cape Rural TVET College 6,759 135

Sekhukhune TVET College - -

Taletso TVET College - 1,641

West Coast TVET 4,390 3,713

Vhembe TVET College - 43

Letaba TVET College 798 622

Lovedale TVET College 1,513 965

Eastern Cape CET College 5,796 3,256

North West CET 4,770 4,754

uMgungundlovu FET College - 780

Gert Sibande TVET College 20 216

Mthashana TVET College - -

Motheo TVET College 3,383 -
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26.  RELATED PARTIES (CONTINUED)

TVET COLLEGES AND UNIVERSITIES

2022

R’000

2021

R’000

Ehlanzeni TVET College 7,984 3,383

Mopani TVET College - 6,529

Ekurhuleni East TVET College 12,622 5,768

Nelson Mandela University 490 -

Tshwane University Of Technology 1,367 7,888

University Of Cape Town 1,050 1,580

University of Fort Hare - -

University of Johannesburg 3,150 3,047

University of Stellenbosch 533 -

Vaal University of Technology 1,643 3,739

Walter Sisulu University 2,869 6,079

University of Western Cape 70 2,082

Cape Peninsula University of Technology 15,674 1,569

Mangosuthu University of Technology 109 2,597

UNISA 700 92

University of Venda 2,915 2,074

Central University of Technology 7,702 4,648

North West University 2,731 2,194

College of Cape Town 1,350 -

Durban University of Technology 210 -

Falsebay TVET College 1,389 -

Free State Community Education and Trainig College 1,645 -

Kwazulu-Natal Community Education and Training College 1,247 -

Limpopo Community Education and Training College 1,921 -

Northlink FET College 508 -

Rhodes University 70 -

Sefako Makgatho Health Sciences University  (Tracy Khoza) 45 -

Sol Plaatje University 70 -

South West Gauteng College 9,283 -

South West TVET College 2,291 -

Staden University 31 -

University of Free State 70 -

University of Kwazulu- Natal 70 -

University of Pretoria 70 -

University of the Free State 70 -

University of the Witwatersrand 70 -

Western Cape Community Education and Training Centre 2,053 -

East Cape Midlands College 295 -

131,465 131,881

Commitment balance for entities under common control. 2,022 2,021
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26.  RELATED PARTIES (CONTINUED)

BOARD AND COMMITTEE REMUNERATION: 2022

BOARD MEMBERS

Attendance Fee

R’000

Skills  

Development Levy

R’000

Expenses

R’000

Total

R’000

Mr.Phumulani Mntambo  

(Board Chairperson) 347 - - 347

Mr. Bhabhali Nhlapo 177 2 8 187

Ms.Shelly Thomas 47 - - 47

Mr.Keith Swanepoel 186 2 - 188

Mr.Barend Johannes Koen 233 2 - 235

Mr. Xola Pakati 30 - - 30

Mr. Rio Nolutshungu 237 2 6 245

Mr. Jesta Sidell 108 1 2 111

Ms. Naledi Modibedi- Rakate 142 1 1 144

Ms. Priscilla Ntsuba 164 2 9 175

Mr.Nelson Mokgotho 224 2 10 236

Ms. Nokubonga Dinga 186 2 22 210

Audit Committee

Mr. Tshepo Mofokeng 43 - 1 44

Mr.Mande Ndema 24 - 1 25

Ms. Gloria Mnguni 24 - 1 25

Mr. Silas Hlope 16 - - 16

2,188 16 61 2,265

BOARD AND COMMITTEE REMUNERATION: 2021

BOARD MEMBERS

Mr. Phumulani Mntambo (Board 

Chairperson) 128 - 2 130

Mr. Keith Swanepoel 173 1 - 174

Mr. Barend Johannes Koen 212 2 - 214

Mr.Xola Pakati 78 1 - 79

Mr. Rio Nolutshungu 215 2 1 218

Ms. Jesta Sidell 108 1 5 114

Ms. Naledi Modibedi_ Rakate 117 1 - 118

Ms. Priscilla Ntsuba 151 1 - 152

Mr.Nelson Mokgotho 142 1 5 148

Ms. Nokubonga Dinga 168 2 12 182

Ms. Bhabhali Nhlapo 108 1 - 109

Ms. Nomawethu Sifumba 7 - - 7

Mr. K Ramotlou* 86 - - 86

Ms. N Mkhulusi* 82 1 - 83

Audit Committee

Mr. T Tshabalala (ARC 

chairperson) 89 1 - 90

Ms. SP Mzizi 42 - - 42

Mr. T Vukea 47 - - 47

Ms. Z Khanyile 26 - - 26

1,979 15 25 2,019

*The board members deceased during the 2020/21 financial period.
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26.  RELATED PARTIES (CONTINUED)

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT: 

2022

Remuneration

R’000

Allowances

R’000

Company

Contribution

R’000

Total

R’000

Chief Executive Officer 2,031 25 422 2,478

Chief Finance Officer 2,020 19 359 2,398

Chief Operating Officer 2,115 18 342 2,475

Corporate Services Executive 1,206 18 258 1,482

Strategy and Planning Executive 1,662 18 234 1,914

Senior Manager: Monitoring and 

Evaluation 1,065 18 259 1,342

Head Internal Audit 1,289 18 177 1,484

11,388 134 2,051 13,573

* The Free State Provincial Manager acted as the Corporate Services Executive for the period 2 December 2021 to date. The 

Strategy and Planning Executive acted as the Chief Operating Officer for the period 17 January 2022 to date.  The Internal Audit 

Manager acted the Head of Internal Audit for the period 3 November 2021 to date.

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT: 

2021

Remuneration

R’000

Allowances

R’000

Company

Contribution

R’000

Total

R’000

Chief Executive Officer 467 5 120 592

Chief financial Officer 2,004 31 344 2,379

Chief Operating Officer 2,001 31 328 2,360

Corporate Services Executive 1,185 31 205 1,421

Strategy and Planning Executive 1,576 31 221 1,828

Senior Manager: Monitoring and 

Evaluation 968 37 247 1,252

Head Internal Audit 1,220 18 167 1,405

9,421 184 1,632 11,237

The CFO acted as the Chief Executive Officer for the period 1 November 2019 - 31 December 2020. The Finance 

Reporting Manager acted as the CFO during the same period.

The CEO was appointed effectively from January 2021.

27.  PRIOR-PERIOD ERRORS

Presented below are those items contained in the statement of financial position and statement of financial 

performance that have been affected by prior-year adjustments:

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION: 2021 Note

As previously 

reported

R’000

Correction of error

R’000

Restated

R’000

Property, plant and equipment 3 2,220 - 2,220

Operating lease liability 5 (42) (146) (188)

2,178 (146) 2,032

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 2021

Operating lease costs 5 6,775 146 6,921
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27.  PRIOR-PERIOD ERRORS

OPERATING LEASE COSTS/LIABILITY

Non-application of “GRAP 13:Leases” on all lease agreements, as such not all lease instalments were equalised and 

compared to actual lease instalments for determining the resultant operating lease liability as required by GRAP 13.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The prior period Property, Plant and Equipment Note for 2021 had incorrect values for Disposals and Depreciation. 

Disposals were added as part of depreciation on the note and not shown separately. The effect of the restatement 

was as follows:

RECONCILIATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT – 

2021

Disposals 

(Increase)

R’000

Depreciation 

(Decrease)

R’000

Office furniture and fittings (77) 77

Office equipment (60) 60

Computer equipment (288) 288

(425) 425

CASH FLOW STATEMENT 2021

As previously 

reported

R’000

Correction of error

R’000

Restated

R’000

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

SDL Revenue, interest and penalties received 534,610 (764) 533,846

Interest received 75,295 (17,567) 57,728

Compensation of employees (86,434) 31 (86,403)

Grants and project payments (311,297) 15,187  (296,110)

Payments to suppliers and other general expenses (40,275) 3,110 (37,165)

171,899        (3) 171,896

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (935)  5 (930)

OTHER DISCLOSURES

COMMITMENTS DISCLOSURE NOTE

Prior year closing balance - 420,358

Reinstatements of cancelled commitments - 1,775

Prior year expenditure adjustments due to cut off issues - (1,398)

Adjusted closing balance - 420,735

Commitment balance was restated due to reinstatement of commitments that were cancelled due to expired 

contracts and also cut off issues on project expenses.
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27.  PRIOR-PERIOD ERRORS (CONTINUED)

2022

R’000

2021

R’000

CALCULATION OF SURPLUS FUNDS DISCLOSURE NOTE

CALCULATION OF SURPLUS

Surplus as previously reported - 808,030

Prior period error (Add commitments) - 567,362

Restated surplus calculation - 1,375,392

Prior year calculation was not as per the instruction note 12 of 2020/2021 due to omission of receivables from 

non-exchange transactions.

EMPLOYER GRANT AND PROJECT EXPENSES

During the current financial period, management identified expenses to the discretionary grant claims that 

were incorrectly excluded as expenditure for 2020/21 due to cut off issues. As such project expenses related to 

discretionary grants were understated in 2020/21 financial year for a total amount of R 1 540.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES FROM NON–EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

During the review of the trade payables, management identified balances which related to projects (discretionary 

grants) that were incorrectly not included as payables from non-exchange for 2021/21 financial year. As such 

Payables from non-exchange were understated by R 1 540.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Increase in trade payables from non-exchange transactions - (1,540)

Decrease in reserves - 1,540

- -

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Increase in discretionary grants project expenses - 1,540

28.  RISK MANAGEMENT

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

In the course of LGSETA operations it is exposed to interest rate, credit, liquidity and market risk. LGSETA has 

developed the Investment Policy to ensure that we manage the financial risk related to financial instruments and 

investments. The risk management process relating to each of these risks is discussed under the headings below.

LIQUIDITY RISK

LGSETA manages liquidity risk through proper management of working capital, capital expenditure. Adequate 

reserves and liquid resources are maintained.
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28.  RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

2021/22

Carrying

amount

R’000

Contractual

Cash Flows

R’000

Less than 1

year

R’000

1 to 2 years

R’000

More that 2

years

R’000

Trade and other payables from 

exchange 7,238 7,238 7,238 - -

Trade and other payables from non - 

Exchange 118,684 118,684 118,684 - -

125,922 125,922 125,922 - -

2020/21

Trade and other payables from 

exchange transactions 3,179 3,179 3,179 - -

Trade and other payables: non-

Exchange 98,009 98,009 98,009 - -

101,188 101,188 101,188 - -

CREDIT RISK

Financial assets, which potentially subject the LGSETA to the risk of non-performance by counter parties and 

thereby subject to credit concentrations of credit risk, consist mainly of cash and cash equivalents, investments 

and accounts receivable. The maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying amount of the financial 

instruments. Trade receivables have been adequately assessed for impairment.

Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as follows:

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT

2022

R’000

2021

R’000

Receivables from exchange transactions 7,328 6,823

Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,873,802 1,478,927

Receivables from non- exchange transactions 2,055 2,500

2021/22 AGE 

ANALYSIS

Current

R’000

31 to 60 days

R’000

61 to 90 days

R’000

91 to 120 days

R’000

More than 

120 days

R’000

Carrying 

Amount

R’000

Receivables from 

exchange transactions 7,328 - - - - 7,328

Cash and cash 

equivalents 1,873,802 - - - - 1,873,802

Receivables from non-

exchange transactions - - - - 2,055 2,055

Trade payables from 

exchange transactions (5,655) (1,535) (32) (8) - (7,231)

Trade payables 

from non-exchange 

transactions (114,372) (3,760) (174) (379) - (118,684)

Gross Before 

Impairment 1,761,103 (5,295) (206) (387) 2,055 1,757,270
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28.  RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

2020/21 AGE 

ANALYSIS

Current

R’000

31 to 60 days

R’000

61 to 90 days

R’000

91 to 120 days

R’000

More than 

120 days

R’000

Carrying 

Amount

R’000

Receivables from 

exchange transactions 6,823 - - - - 6,823

Cash and cash 

equivalents 1,478,926 - - - - 1,478,926

Receivables from non-

exchange transactions - - - - 2,500 2,500

Trade payables from 

exchange transactions (2,698) (259 (82) (140) - (3,179)

Trade payables 

from non-exchange 

transactions (83,910) (3,899) (2,137) (8,063) - (98,009)

Gross Before 

Impairment 1,399,141 (4,158) (2,219) (8,203) 2,500 1,387,061

LGSETA limits its counter–party exposure by only dealing with well–established financial institutions approved 

by National Treasury and in terms of the LGSETA Investment policy. In terms of this policy all investments are 

monitored by the LGSETA Finance and Operation Committee (FINCO) on a continuous basis.

Credit risk with respect to SDL paying employers is limited due to the nature of the income received. LGSETA does 

not have any material exposure to any individual or counter–party. LGSETA’s concentration of credit risk is limited 

to the industry in which the LGSETA operates. No significant events occurred in the industry during the financial 

year that may have an impact on the accounts receivable that has not been adequately provided for. Accounts 

receivable are presented net of allowance for doubtful debts.

MARKET RISK INTEREST RATE RISK

The LGSETA manages its interest rate risk by investing in the financial institutions and conservative financial 

instruments approved by National Treasury. The LGSETA’s exposure to interest rate risk and the effective interest 

rates on financial instruments at statement of financial position date are as follows:

2021/22

Interest

bearing

amount

R’000

Effective

Interest Rate

%

Non- Interest

Bearing

Amount

R’000

Receivables from exchange transactions 3,431 2.26 % 3,898

Cash and cash equivalents 1,873,803 2.09 % -

Receivables from non- exchange transactions - - % 2,055

Trade and other trade payables from exchange transctions - - % 7,231

Trade and other payables (non- Exchange) - - % 118,684

1,877,234 4.35 % 131,868

2020/21

Receivables from exchanges activities 6,823 5.20 % -

Cash and cash equivalents 1,478,926 5.20 % -

Receivables from non-exchange transactions - - % 2,500

Trade and other trade payables from exchange transactions - - % (3,179)

Trade and other payables (non-exchange) - - % (98,009)

1,485,749 10.40 % (98,688)
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28.  RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

MARKETS RISK

The LGSETA is exposed to market risks if there is a sudden reduction in employment at the municipal level which 

has an impact in wages and salaries. The conclusion of the demarcation processes did not have any material impact 

on the LGSETA.

FAIR VALUES

LGSETA’s financial instruments consist mainly of cash and cash equivalents, account and other receivables, and 

account and other payables. No financial instruments were carried at an amount in excess of its fair value.

No financial asset was carried at an amount in excess of its fair value and fair values could be reliably measured for 

all financial instruments.

The following methods and assumptions are used to determine the fair value of each class of financial instruments:

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents approximates fair value due to the relatively short–term maturity 

of these financial assets.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

The carrying amount of accounts receivable, net of allowance for impairment, approximates fair value due to the 

relatively short–term maturity of these financial assets. Interest is levied at the prescribed rate as determined by 

the Act should employers pay SDL late. This interest is then transferred to the SETA via DHET.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

The carrying amount of account and other payables approximates fair value due to the relatively short-term 

maturity of these financial liabilities.

29.  GOING CONCERN

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. 

This basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realization of assets and 

settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business. 

The Minister of Higher Education and Training has issued a Government Gazette, notice number 42290 dated 6 

February 2019, National Skills Development Plan 2030 which resulted in changes on the SETA landscape. In terms 

of the issued gazette; SETA’s will have no limited lifespan but a mechanism to address non–performance will be 

established. The license period for the SETA has been extended up to 31 March 2030.

As a result of the above analysis the LGSETA will still be able to continue with normal operations for the next 12 

months

30.  EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

Management considered the events that occurred after reporting date and is satisfied that there were no material 

significant circumstances which affect the financial position of the SETA arisen between the date of the balance 

sheet and the date of submission of the financial statements.
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31.  FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE

2022

R’000

2021

R’000

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure incurred 35,892  35,892

Opening balance as restated 35,892 35,892

Add: Expenditure identified - current year 3 -

Closing balance 35,895 35,892

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure relates to the project identified during 2016/17 financial period relating to 

fraudulent grant claims submitted by the service provider for training which did not take place . Action is being 

taken by management in terms of criminal and civil action against the service provider. Internal disciplinary 

processes were conducted and have resulted in dismissal of one of the LGSETA  employees in 2018/19 financial 

period. Investigation for criminal and civil actions are currently in progress.

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure in the current year is due to interest charges on overdue accounts.

32.  IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE

Opening balance as previously reported 316 -

Opening balance as restated 316 -

Non- Compliance with the section 11A & 11C of Skills Development  Act 376 312

Non- Compliance with delegation of authority and PFMA section 56 - 4

Add irregular current expenditure- Non- compliance with PPPFA, LGSETA 

Policies and PFMA Non-Compliance with SETA Grant regulations 2,174 -

Non-Compliance with SETA Grant regulations 39,089 -

Closing balance 41, 955 316

32.1  NON- COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 11A & 11C OF SKILLS DEVELOPMENT ACT

The non-compliance relates to two board members who were appointed by Department of Higher Education and 

Training prior to the verification process being conducted. The investigations have been concluded by DHET and 

the matter is currently with the board for consideration.

32.2  NON-COMPLIANCE WITH DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY AND PFMA SECTION 56

The non-compliance relates to a variation order when procuring ERS access cards for employees, the approval was 

not done in accordance with the delegation of authority. Investigations into the root causes have been initiated and 

will inform the cause of action to be taken.

32.3  NON-COMPLIANCE WITH PPPFA, LGSETA POLICIES, AND PFMA

Irregular expenditure incurred in the current year is due to non-compliance with PPPFA. Investigations into the 

root causes have been initiated and will inform the cause of action to be taken.

32.4 NON-COMPLIANCE WITH SETA GRANT REGULATIONS

The non-compliance with the SETA grants regulations was due to overspending on the 10.5% admin budget.
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33.  BUDGET DIFFERENCES

MATERIAL DIFFERENCES BETWEEN BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS

During the 2021/22 financial year LGSETA revised its budget due to the significant increase in the skills development 

income which was more than anticipated. The overall skills development levy income collection was above the 

budget by 21%. The overall approved budget was adjusted upwards from R740 million to R837 million which is 

equivalent to 8%.

SIGNIFICANT BUDGET DIFFERENCES RELATING TO REVENUE

Levy income form penalties and interest are above the original budget but below the revised budget. This income is 

attributable to employers who fail to submit their returns as required by the law. The received income is as a result 

of a number of levy payers who have defaulted their skills Development Levy (SDL) submissions with the SARS.

INVESTMENT INCOME (UNFAVOURABLE)

The investment income is below by 24% to the final budget which could be attributable to the withdrawal of 

exemption to invest with major banks by the National Treasury. The LGSETA could not continue to invest in order 

to compliance with the directive from the National Treasury

LEGAL FEES (FAVOURABLE)

The legal fees were favourable by 26%, this decrease is attributed to the organisation not having many cases this 

financial year.

STAFF TRAINING (FAVOURABLE)

Staff training is below the budget by 56% in the reporting period. This can be attributable to the COVID-19 pandemic 

resulting in many trainings being hosted online therefore reducing the overall costs included in staff training.

QCTO EXPENDITURE (FAVOURABLE)

The QCTO budget was revised downwards by 30%, however, the budget was fully utilized during the reporting 

period as adjusted. The QCTO expense was an annual payment as determined by the Minister. The total cost 

transferrable to the QCTO for the 2021/22 was R3.502 million, from the initial budget of R4.98 million. There 

were no further costs to be incurred for the 2021/22 financial period and therefore, the expenditure line item was 

reduced in line with the determination from the Minister

PRINTING (FAVOURABLE)

The total printing costs were favourable by 73%, this decrease can be attributed to head office employees working from 

home due to the new office being renovated and also staff members were working from home on rotational basis.

TRAVEL AND ACCOMMODATION (FAVOURABLE)

The travel budget was not adjusted due to the lockdown travel restrictions; the expenditure was below the budget 

by 7%. The relaxation of the lockdown conditions contributed to spending to the budget spending.

EXTERNAL AUDIT FEES (FAVOURABLE) 

During the 2021/22 financial period, the external audit continued to limit its scope of the audit in compliance with 

the lockdown conditions. This has resulted in spending below the budget by 15%.
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33.  BUDGET DIFFERENCES (CONTINUED)

LEASE RENTALS EXPENDITURE (FAVOURABLE)

The lease rentals expenditure is below the budget by 40% this is largely attributable to the Mpumalanga provincial 

office which launched later in the financial year. The original lease agreement had expired and mostly work was 

executed from home due to the bidding processes and leases more expensive than the previous years.

MARKETING AND ADVERTISING (FAVOURABLE)

The actual expenditure for the period was less the budget by 65%. This could still be attributable to the lockdown 

restrictions which compelled certain activities to be put on hold. Later during the reporting period as the restrictions 

were relaxed expenditure started to increase.

CONFERENCES AND WORKSHOPS (FAVOURABLE)

The budget for conferences and workshops for this reporting period was below the budget by 20%. This is 

attributable to the continued travel restrictions emanating from the lockdown restrictions.

LEGAL FEES (FAVOURABLE)

The legal fees actual expenditure was below the budget by 26%. The legal fees were anticipated to increase as there 

were cases at the CCMA and ongoing investigations relating to the fruitless and wasteful expenditure incurred in 

2016/17 financial period. As a result the legal fees were adjusted upwards by 89% from R2.35 million to R5 million, 

in order to accommodate the additional costs anticipated for the remainder of the 2021/22 financial period.

OTHER EXPENSES INCLUDING ASSET PURCHASES (FAVOURABLE)

The actual expenditure on other expenses is below the budget by 51%. This could be as a result of delays in 

the  tender process during the 2021/22 financial period. This resulted in reduction in the overall costs on the IT 

expenditure, and these costs are anticipated to be moved to the next financial period. The overall expenditure was 

reduced by 49% to R6.4 million for the period.

GENERAL EXPENSES (FAVOURABLE)

The general expenses expenditure is below the budgeted amount by 34%. The overall budget was increased by 

168% in anticipation of additional costs from the Mpumalanga office establishment

EMPLOYEE COSTS (UNFAVOURABLE)

The employee related costs exceed the final budget of R68 522 by R22 977 which is equivalent to 34% less 

spent. This could be attributable to the payment of the relocation incentive for the Mpumalanga office employees 

which amounted to R342 thousand.

The total positions which had been vacant during the 2021/22 financial period, included manager SCM and SCM 

practitioner positions within the Finance Unit were filled. The total cost to company for these vacancies amounted 

to R2,9 million for the full financial period.

In addition to the vacancies to be filled, management effected the salary increase of 5% taking into account the 

agreed upon salary increase in the local government sector. Furthermore, two employees received counter offers 

from LGSETA in securing the memory of the organisation and also ensuring the stability within the LGSETA.

Included in the employee cost is R25 968’ relating to administrative expenses from Discretionary grants, which was 

budgeted as part of Discretionary grants.
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33.  BUDGET DIFFERENCES (CONTINUED)

INTERNAL AUDIT FEES (FAVOURABLE) 

The Internal Audit fees original budget was adjusted upwards by R1 078 to R2 897, however the actual spent was 

less than the adjusted budget by R1 706, which is equivalent to 58% less spent in comparison to adjusted budgeted 

amount. The budget increase was requested due to the project of the Commitments reconstruction projects which 

is still on-going. The project has overlapped over the current financial year. The review of the 2021/22 Annual 

Financial Statements cost is also Included in this budget.

CONSULTANCY AND SERVICE PROVIDERS (UNFAVOURABLE) 

The consultants costs have exceeded the approved and revised budget by 68% equating to R1 283 in monetary 

value. The increase in consultants’ costs are due to the outsourcing of various sections within LGSETA.

TELEPHONE AND INTERNET (UNFAVOURABLE) 

The Telephone and Internet costs have exceeded the approved and revised budget by 12 percent which is R466, 

this is mainly due to the installation of data cables and fibre at the new head office and various provincial offices, 

such as Mpumalanga and KZN. The remote working conditions also added to the increased cost on telephone and 

internet.

REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE (FAVOURABLE)

Repairs and maintenance actually spent were below budget by 51%, which is attributable to cost saving initiatives 

undertaken by the entity. The overall budget was not adjusted for the period.

GOVERNANCE COSTS (FAVOURABLE)

The actual expenditure incurred for Governance costs was 24% below the approved budget in the current financial 

year. The lesser expenditure is due to lesser governance initiatives and cost savings, as they were affected by 

lockdown conditions which made it difficult.

MANDATORY GRANTS EXPENSES (UNFAVOURABLE)

The mandatory grants expenses that were actually incurred, exceeded the approved budget and Final budget (after 

adjustments) by 18%. This is due to the direct effect caused by an increase in levies revenue, which resulted in more 

mandatory grant disbursements. As such, more collections translated into increased expenditures.

TOTAL DISCRETIONARY GRANTS EXPENDITURE (FAVOURABLE)

The discretionary grants expenditure was below the final budgeted amount by 69% as the entity spent R 354 403’ 

less than the adjusted budgeted amount of R 511 203’. The decrease in actual expenditure is attributed to delays 

experienced in the finalisation of grant disbursements due to changes in the allocation of grants, which translated 

into lesser expenditure. The overall budgeted was adjusted by an additional 22% as a result of the direct effect in 

levy income increases,which normally translates into increased expenditure as a result. income increases, which 

normallytranslates into increased expenditure as a result.

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)



102 LGSETA |  ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22

34.  WORLD SKILLS SOUTH AFRICA

The Local Government Sector Education Training Authority (LGSETA) has in the current financial year entered into 

a Memorandum of Understanding with Department of the Higher Education and Training (DHET) – World Skills 

South Africa (WSSA) and National Skills Fund (NSF) to enable the funding of 120 apprentices on five different 

trades, namely: Plumbing and heating; Bricklaying; Heavy Vehicle Maintenance and Mechanical Engineering 

Computer Aided Design (CAD).

The LGSETA and its funded participants will partake in the International Competition Conference  in which LGSETA 

and participants will acquire the knowledge, information and skills required to improve and implement in the current 

Artisan projects.

The LGSETA Board has approved to support two qualifying competition skills by INDLELA with R 1 000, allocated to 

National Skills Fund (NSF), towards the preparation of the International Skills Competition taking place in October 

2022 in Shangai, China.
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LGSETA PROVINCIAL OFFICES

EASTERN CAPE PROVINCIAL OFFICE:

Unit GF4 Ground Floor, Rio Ridge Office Park, Berea 

East London, 5201. 

Tel: (061) 975 6970

FREE STATE PROVINCIAL OFFICE: 

Corner Markgraaf & Zastron Street, Fountain Towers 

Building, 1st Floor, Bloemfontein, 9330. 

Tel: (051) 448 2481

GAUTENG / HEAD OFFICE:

Gillooly’s View Office Park, 1 Osborne Lane, 

Bedfordview, 2007, PO Box 1964, Bedfordview 2008. 

Tel: (011) 456-8579

KWAZULU-NATAL PROVINCIAL OFFICE: 

Delmat House, 27-29 Jan Hofmeyer Road, Westville, 

Durban, 4000. 

Tel: (031) 337 9085/9178

LIMPOPO PROVINCIAL OFFICE: 

73 Biccard Street, Maneo Building, 1st Floor, Polokwane, 

0699.

Tel: (015) 297 0286 & (015) 297 0484

MPUMALANGA PROVINCIAL OFFICE: 

24 Paul Kruger Street, 5th Floor, ABSA Square Building, 

Nelspruit, 1201. 

Tel: (013) 001 2298/99

NORTHERN CAPE PROVINCIAL OFFICE: 

10 Oliver Road, Left Wing, Block 2, Ground Floor, 

Montrio Corporate Park, Kimberley, 8301.

Tel: (053) 831 2748/1565

NORTH WEST PROVINCIAL OFFICE: 

43 Church Street, Standard Bank Building, 1st Floor, 

Klerksdorp, 2570. 

Tel: (018) 462 1338

WESTERN CAPE PROVINCIAL OFFICE: 

2nd Floor, Belmont Office Park, Belmont Road, 

Rondebosch, 7700.

Tel: (021) 686 7081/2
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NOTES
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